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! 4,816 | ... 5,005 | ... 4,539 | 8,282 | ....3.732
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1,029,852 874,533 822,495 243,033 619,911
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e, ©9) | 20 o 18 o 68 |, 200
(7,840) 3,068 2,045 7,726 22,724
! 6,328 |... 5,438 | 4,980 | ... 2,144 13,850
718,987 617,866 565,828 243,601 414,713
2.58 2.16 1.90 0.79 1.29
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@) 55 45 37 25 17

18/243




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

oooooog

R 6,984 | ... 12205 1 3:022 | ... 2,009 | ... 3,872 .

748,074 818,632 343,360 569,123 439,937
e 1438 A (1,164) 1 ... (2:414) | ... (2,299)

(163,045) (106,916) (132,254) (274,279) (261,212)
e 32803 (6,478) [ ....... (1,746) |......... (2,699) |........ (3,304)

(409,373) (736,030) (198,381) (301,661) (375,400)

11,300 9,500 9,500 8,500 7,500

2015
2007 10 10 USA
Inovant LLC
10 USA
775
2008 10 14
200
VisaNet
2007 2007 10 USA
2008 1PO
2015
2016
Visa Ready program
2015

19/243




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Apple Google Samsung
. Emv
POS
EMV
Bangalore Technology Center
1,000
Visa Checkout
16 e
Visa payWave
Visa Direct
mVisa
2015
2011 2012
2014
D.C.
2015 10

11

20/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2015 1

2015
2015
MIR
11
2015 11
2016
A aN .. . |
oy MEEMRSH o T— i
R
o ALz SERY ]
RIS TR = B WSS s ek
L g FOMERA R E SRR TL RiTEN
Al RiFE0E OO SRR R
ITI aind. BB ARG,
e g FETRELFYIIER MY -E2
hIR R RN S ey E | 1, B R TR b Lol I, O AT —,
" RN E LN R
E [ ]
S
M-
n W S » “"
s
FhAHEWE

Payment Services

21/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

22/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Visa Debit Processing Services DPS

DPS
ATM

2015 2014
30

13

ATM

ACH

23/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

ooOoooOoo
2014
o
( ) ( )
@ 4,761 7,360 98.4 2,402
(©)
MasterCard 3,281 4,499 60.1 1,437
(©)
American Express 1,011 1,023 6.7 112
1c8® 195 202 2.4 88
/ (©)
Discover/Diners Club 153 164 2.4 57
UnionPay
JCB /
1060 2015
Maestro Cirrus
JCB
JCB
Interlink
Visa Electron brands
NYCE PULSE EFTPOS
NETS Interac
PayPal Alipay

24/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

oOoOooodn
10
2015 30 11,300
11
2012
2015 EU
2015
12

20

CFPB

CFPB

20

25/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

OFAC
12
SEC
http://ww.sec.gov SEC 20549 DC
100F SEC 1-800-SEC-0330
http://corporate.visa.com
SEC 10- 10-
http://investor.visa.com
http://investor.visa.com
FD
SEC
SEC
2015 30

26/243



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

oOoOooodn

( ) ( )
@
LAC
CEMEA
@
Visa - 100
International
Service
Association
USA
Visa U.S.A. @ 100
Inc.
8,967,651 100
Visa Worldwide
Pte. Limited
2015
2015 30 11,300 7,500 3,800
1,062
3,688

1,898

27/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2015 30
2015 30

28/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2011 10
21

2011 10

EU
20

POS

29/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

BCCI
BCCI

NSPK

2015

OFAC OFAC

1968 2009

CFPB

CFPB
CFPB

30/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

Bank of England

1PO

USA

31/243



20 2005

MDL 1720

26 2015 10 22

MDL 1720
2014 14

MDL 1720

MDL 1720

MDL 1720 23
MDL 1720

1PO
23

4.0

MDL 1720

2016

32/243

2011

MDL 1720

2015 11

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

MDL 1720

2014

MDL 1720

MDL 1720
2015 10 22

MDL 1720



20

20

19

33/243

20

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

20



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

JP JPMorgan Chase
Bank of America

13

34/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

ACH

EMVCo
EMV

Faster Payments

Merchant Customer Exchange

35/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

36/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

37/243



11

38/243

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

39/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

40/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

15 15

2008

41/243



2015 11

2014 30

2016

15

30 15 16

42/243

2016

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

EU

2017

2015 2014
2013 143 EU
143
EU

20

2015 2014 30
2015 2014 30

43/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

Ogoooood
200
2015
2015 11
100 21.2 ©)
11.5
5.0 (b) 16
4.0 0.7
20
2016
2015 6.3 2.58
16 20 2015 2014 2013
GAAP
20 ®
2015 2014
2014 2013
2015 2014 2013
( )
@ 6,438 5,721 4,980 13% 15%
2.62 2.27 1.90 16 % 19%

(B1C))

44/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

ooooooo
2015 2014
2013
2015
2015 296
296 239 2014 30
2013 191
19
2015 13.9
2.5
2015 4.8 2014
450
2015 2014
2015 110
2014 450
20
2015 2014 2013
2015
@
(€3]1¢) ®)
4,816 65% 6,328 2.58
- - 110 0.04
4,816 65% 6,438 2.62
2,457
2014
&)

(]€) ®)

45/243



2015
2015 13
19
1.6483
4.0
2015
12 @

@)
(O]

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OOO0Oodn

5,005 61% 5,438 2.16

(450) 4% 283 0.11

4,555 64% 5,721 2.27

2,523

2013
()
€5103) @A)
4,539 61% 4,980 1.90
2,624
2015
2015 18 2015
14
44 2.9
2015 30 2.8 2014 10
2015 10 5.0
14
2015 30
13 15
@
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
30 30 30 30 30 30
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980 872 12% 1,676 1,600 5% 2,656 2,472 7%
1,201 1,128 7% 463 454 2% 1,665 1,581 5%
412 370 11% 151 145 4% 563 515 9%
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872 786 11% 1,600 1,498 7% 2,472 2,284 8%
® 1,128 1,046 8% 454 392 16% 1,581 1,438 0%
@ 370 334 11% 145 140 3% 515 474 9%
2,369 2,167 9% 2,108 2,030 8% 4,567 4,107 9%
469 446 5% 2,122 2,083 2% 2,591 2,530 2%
® 2,838 2,613 9y 4,320 4,113 5% 7,158 6,726 6%
@
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7,406 6,847 6,379 559 468 8% %
6,219 5,629 5,177 590 452 10% 9%
255 226 222 29 4 13% 2%
13,880 12,702 11,778 1,178 924 % 8%
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2015
2.5
30 ()
2015 2014 2015 2014
2014 2013 2014 2013
2015 2014 2013
(
6,302 5,797 5,352 505 445 9% 8%
5,552 5,167 4,642 385 525 7% 11%
4,064 3,560 3,389 504 171 14% 5%
823 770 716 53 54 7% 7%
(2,861) (2,592) (2,321) (269) (271) 10% 12%
13,880 12,702 11,778 1,178 924 9% 8t
2015 2014
2015
2015 2014 11
2015 2015
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872 900 876 (28) 24 3)% 3 %
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336 328 412 8 (84) 2% (20)%
494 435 397 59 38 14 4 10 %
547 507 451 40 56 8 % 12 %
14 453 3 (439) 450 (97)% M
@ 4,816 5,005 4,539 (189) 466 (4)% 10 %
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2015 2014
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2013 2014
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2014
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® 112 242 229 71 654
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40 PER
1.5
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2015 2014 30 1.0
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248 30
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1.9 1.4
0.9
0.1
0.2
0.8
2015 30
w M@ D)
2,003,366, 656,020 2,338,627,810 2,001,028,028,210
25,000,000
123,525,417
2007 EIP
174,430,730

2015 30
1
0.0001 1,949,944,700 (6
2
0.0001 369,038,802 @)
2
0.0001 19,644,308 @
- 2,338,627,810 - -
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2015
2015 2014 10
2015 30 2015 30

329,467 329,467

329,467 329,467

59.24 59.24
6,731 6,731

19,518,723 19,518,723
2,217,717,307 2,217,717,307

- 329,467

- 329,467

- 59.24

- 6,731

- 19,518,723

- 2,217,717,307

- 19,670,533

2015 30

1PO

- 49,273.14

2010 10 - 492,731,351
- 5,598,414
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2,689.05 51,962.19

2011 30 26,890,538(1(2) 519,621,889
305,530 5,903,944
1,501.61 53,463.80

2012 30 15,016,114(1) (2 534,638,003
170,613 6,074,557
(2.,685.94) 50,777.86

2013 30 (26,859,472) 507,778,531
(305,177) 5,769,380
(1,329.49) 49,448 .37

2014 30 (13,294,875) 494,483,656
(151,057) 5,618,324
145,546.10 194,994 .47

2015 30 @ 1,455,461,044 1,949,944,700
16,536,948 22,155,272

2015 2015
USA

- 36,903.88

2010 10 - 369,038,802
- 4,193,019
0 36,903.88

2011 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,193,019
0 36,903.88

2012 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,193,019
0 36,903.88

2013 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,193,019
0 36,903.88

2014 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,193,019
0 36,903.88

2015 30 0 369,038,802
0 4,193,019
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2010 10 - 97,568,797
- 1,108,577
(5,038.49) 4,718.39

2011 30 (50,384,903 47,183,894
(572,473) 536,103
(1,668.23) 3,050.16

2012 30 (16,682,255y(1) 30,501,639
(189,544) 346,559
(355.44) 2,694.72

2013 30 (3,554,438) 26,947,201
(40,385) 306,174
(461.73) 2,232.99

2014 30 (4,617,347) 22,329,854
(52,462) 253,712
(268.56) 1,964.43

2015 30 (2,685,546) 19,644,308
(30,514) 223,199

2011 27 2011

55
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100.00

The

Depositary Trsut Company

@

@

@

100

100.00

USA
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€Y}

100

100.00
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2015 30
@
@ 10022
119,722,517 6.2
BlackRock, Inc. 52 55
02210
® 109,776,618 5.6
FMR LLC 245
@ 19355
114,903,414 5.9
The Vanguard Group 100
- 344,402,549 17.7
2016 27 SEC SC 13G/A
2016 12 SEC SC 13G/A
2016 11 SEC SC 136G
1
@ @
28255
1 4,2 4 26.1
Bank of America 00 64,285,88 6.18
Corporation
JP 10017-2070
40,272,211 16.40
JP Morgan Chase & Co. 270
94104
28,258,182 11.51
Wells Fargo & Company 420
57104
. 34,657,001 14.12
Citigroup Inc.
60 701
19801
20,781,602 8.46
Barclays Bank PLC
1301
- 188,254,880 76.68
2015 30
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1
@ o)
. L 105-8011
Sumitomo Mitsui Card 20 4,283,285 21.8
Company, Limited
135-8601
UC Card Co., Ltd. 1,321,694 6.7
2000
Commonwealth Bank of 201 1,205,773 6.1
Australia
- 6,810,752 34.6
2015 30
EIP ESPP
2015 30
EIP ESPP
16
a
a
9,151,111 P 29.01 174,430,730
526,606 11.74 .
9,677,717 28.07 174,430,730
EIP
2015 30
1,442,522 1,263,962
2010
EIP
2015 ESPP
15
16 2015 30 EIP ESPP 154

20
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2015 2014 30

2015

.12
.12
.12
.12

o O o o

2014

.10
.10
.10
.10

o O o o

2015 10 2015 11 13
2015 12 0.14
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
23.69 34.16 50.22 56.19 76.92
2,692 3,881 5,706 6,384 8,740
16.63 20.43 33.72 48.71 48.80
1,890 2,321 3,831 5,534 5,545
2015
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

69.98 70.69 70.02 76.92 76.17 72.32

7,951 8,032 7,956 8,740 8,654 8,217

64.35 65.15 66.69 66.53 60.00 67.03

7,311 7,402 7,577 7,559 6,817 7,616

721243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

15
21
2015 12
60

233,844 772,912 1,006,756
113,012 . 113,012
91,897 115,408 207,305
89,344(1) 138,572 227,916
140,756 100,036 240,792
124,288(2) 49,984 174,272
30,332 - 30,332
18,652 - 18,652
6,300 - 6,300
57,368 - 57,368
123,612(4) - 123,612
101,612(® - 101,612
61,612 . 61,612
172,460(6) - 172,460
62,472 - 62,472

9 O 1,820,504 1,527,736 3,348,240

94128-8999

8999
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OooooOodd
2007 Richey 2007 Trust 58,084
Pollitt Family Trust 124,288
Mary B.
Cranston Trust 30,332
32,000
16,000
Johnson Family Trust
101,612
William Shanahan Revocable Trust 169,580
392,943 2015
30 60 350,824

Vasant M. Prabhu

55
2015

NBC NBCUniversal
NBC NBC

Starwood Hotels & Resorts
Worldwide, Inc.
35 Safeway, Inc.

The McGraw-Hill Companies

1992 1998 PepsiCola International
PepsiCo

Booz, Allen & Hamilton

Mattel, Inc.

Ryan Mclnerney

40
2013
200

741243
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0oooood
75,000 14 JP

CEO 23 20

McKinsey & Company

Rajat Taneja

51
2013 11
IT
2011 10 2013 11 Electronic Arts Inc.
IT
1996 2011 Microsoft Corporation
2011
2007 2011
Ellie Mae, Inc.
Kelly Mahon Tullier
49
2014
PepsiCo, Inc.
Frito-Lay, Inc.
Baker Botts LLP
Sidney A. Fitzwater
Ellen Richey
66

2006
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2014 10

Washington Mutual, Inc.
Providian Financial Corporation
Farella, Braun &
Martel
Lewis F. Powell, Jr.
William Sheedy

48

1993

50
2008 1PO
2017 11
2015 12 11
Lloyd A. Carney

53

2013

Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. CEO

2008 2012 Xsigo

Systems CEO

2003 2006 IBM International Business Machines Corporation

Micromuse, Inc. CEQ

Wentworth Institute of Technology
Lesley College
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Juniper Networks,
Inc.
Nortel Networks Inc.
Bay Networks, Inc.

Mary B. Cranston

67
Pillsbury
Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP
1999 2006 2006 12
2012
30 CEO
2002
National Law Journal 100
500

Francisco Javier Fernandez-Carbajal

60

2002
2005

Servicios Administrativos Contry
S.A. de C.V.
2000 2002 BBVA BBVA
Bancomer

BBVA Grupo Financiero BBVA Bancomer, S.A.
1991 BBVA
1999 10 2000 1995 10

1999 10

Instituto Tecnoldgico y de Estudios Superiores de Monterrey

BBVA

771243
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BBVA

Alfred F. Kelly, Jr.

57
TowerBrook Capital Partners L.P.

2011 2014 48

2014 NY/NJ 2014 NY/NJ Super Bowl Host
Company

American Express
Company 2007 2010 2005 2007
2000 2005
23
1985 1987
1981 1985
Robert W. Matschullat
68
2006 2006 10 The
Clorox Company
2004 2005 2005 2006
1995 2000
The Seagram Company Limited
1991 1995
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated

1992 1995 2002 2007

McKesson Corporation
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42 100

Cathy E. Minehan

2011
Arlington Advisory
Partners
39 2007 Federal Reserve Bank of
Boston
1994 2007
1991 1994
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company (MassMutual)
2009 2012 MITRE Corporation
Becton, Dickinson and Company
Suzanne Nora Johnson
2004 11 2007
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
Global Markets
Institute
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Pfizer

Kerry Group Kuok

2004

1995
E.l.
DuPont Greater

One Equity Partners

21
AIG Intuit
J David J. Pang
72
Foundation Limited
2002
2001 2007
2000 E.l.
DuPont de Nemours and Company
China
E.Il.
Charles W. Scharf
50
2012 11
JP
2004 2011 JP
2002
Bank One Corporation
2000 2002

Salomon Smith Barney

2004

1999 2000

1995 1999
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JP
25
JP
ATM
2000
13
110
USA
John A. C. Swainson
61
2012 IT
Dell Inc.
2010 2012
Silver Lake Partners
2005 2009 12 CA, Inc.
CA Technologies 2004 11
2009 12
2004 2004 11 1BM
1997 2004 1BM
1BM
1BM 26
1BM
1BM
1BM
1BM

Cadence Design Systems Inc.
Assurant Inc. Broadcom Corporation
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Maynard G. Webb, Jr.
60

Webb Investment Network
Everwise Corporation

2011 2013

Inc. 2006 12 2011

2002 2006
eBay, Inc. 1999 2002
eBay Technologies

1995 1998

Bay Networks, Inc.

Gateway
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2015
2015 2014 2013
2015
1 2 3 4
«C C )Y C HY ¢ HY® ¢ Y ¢ HYY ¢ YO ¢
2015 1,000,038 - 5,224,802 2,250,003 3,310,000 24,808 31,717 11,841,368
2014 950,037 - 2,505,671 1,484,362 2,500,000 207,029 45,014 7,692,113
2013 870,867 - 12,999,991 6,000,006 3,574,375 47,310 759,302 24,251,851
2015 547,616(6) 6,875,000(7) 7,500,041(8) - 1,081,253 14,473 979,180 16,997,563
2015 750,029 - 1,951,504 928,242 1,498,275 14,824 20,505 5,163,379
2014 750,029 - 659,355 390,647 1,181,841 39,807 861,286 3,882,965
2013 250,010 1,015,625 4,270,503 1,085,005 564,375 11,645 195,693 7,392,856
2015 750,029 - 1,495,880 872,018 1,262,625 14,588 15,900 4,411,040
2014 639,447 2,000,000 8,249,921 2,749,978 762,293 13,572 20,331 14,435,542
2015 600,023 - 1,644,462 448,737 992,100 70,637 26,584 3,782,543
2015 500,019 - 3,373,953 708,754 - 92,967 28,501 4,704,194
2014 750,029 - 3,678,773 984,365 897,539 212,911 50,944 6,574,561
2013 683,360 - 4,392,120 949,981 1,410,938 65,410 77,611 7,579,420
2015 2014 2013
FASB ASC 718
16
2015
ASC 718
EPS 2015 2012 11 19
2015 11 30 2013 11 19 2016 11 30
2014 11 19 2017 11 30
2013 11 2014 11 EPS
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2,249,989 2,974,813 5,949,625
928,230 1,023,274 2,046,548
872,011 623,869 1,247,737
448,749 1,195,713 2,391,426
708,853 2,665,100 5,330,200
2015 2014 2013

FASB ASC 718

16
2015 ( VIP VIP
( ) ( ) ( )
3,310,000 2,648,000 662,000
1,081,253 757,564 323,689
1,498,275 1,042,650 455,625
1,262,625 868,875 393,750
992,100 695,100 297,000
2015
10
2015 2015
2013
50,000
2015
2015 850,000
2,500,000
2017 2015 30
7,500,000
2015 7,500,000
113,012
2015
2015

401

C O Y2 Yy C Yy > C H®
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75

2015

10,000
1,959
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)

8999

92

6,250
684
15,900
10,000

15,900
15,900
15,900
15,900
15,900

15,900
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4,309

100

5,258
515,520 447,760
4,605

10,000

12,601

642

http://investor.visa.com
94128-8999

31,717
979,180
20,505
15,900
26,584

28,501
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58

2015 10

Russell Hamilton

86/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

120 SEC
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- SEC
2015
CSR
corporatesecretary@visa.com 94128-8999
8999
board@visa.com 94128-
8999 8999

http://investor.visa.com -

businessconduct@visa.com
888 289-9322 AT&T
http://www._usa.att.com/traveler/access numbers/index.jsp
https://visa.alertline.com
94128-8999 8999

2015 12 2015

2015
75
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2015

http://investor.visa.com

2015

2015

KPMG
KPMG
10- 10-

ERM

2015 2015 2015
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120,000
2015
USA
2008
300,000
2015
KPMG LLP
2015 30
PCAOB
16 KPMG
PCAOB
KPMG KPMG

KPMG
KPMG

SEC 2015 30 10-
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2015

2015

ESPP
Say-on-Pay
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200

Frederic W. Cook & Co.

2015 12 11 SEC

2015
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11 12

@

(b)
©

2015
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2015 12 11

2017

SEC

2017

2015 10
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20

20
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527

http://usa.visa.com/corporate-
responsibility

25,000

http://usa.visa.com/corporate-responsibility
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2015
2015
2011 2015
2014 11
2015
2015
2015 2014
105,000 100,000
165,000 150,000
20,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
10,000 5,000
25,000 25,000
20,000 20,000
15,000 15,000
2015 2014 11 19 2014

175,000 180,000
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15,000
2015
2015
1 2 3
C H® ¢ ¥ C H® C )

4) 31,250 - - 31,250
150,000 179,899 15,000 344,899
125,000 179,899 - 304,899
132,500 179,899 15,000 327,399
270,000 179,899 15,000 464,899
125,000 179,899 - 304,899
142,500 179,899 15,000 337,399
125,000 179,899 15,000 319,899
135,000 179,899 17,500 332,399
125,000 179,899 5,000 309,899
125,000 179,899 - 304,899

FASB ASC 718
16 2015 30
2,880
2015
2015
15,000 15,000
2015 11
2015
C ) C )Y C Y C >

@ 26,250 - 5,000 - -

105,000 - 45,000 - -
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0000000
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
105,000 - 20,000 - -
105,000 - - 10,000 17,500 (2)
105,000 165,000 - - -
105,000 - 20,000 - -
105,000 - - 20,000 17,500 O
105,000 - - 10,000 10,000
105,000 - 10,000 ® 15,000 @ 5,000
105,000 - - 10,000 10,000
105,000 - 20,000 - -
2015 11 2015
13 15 15 15
SEC
2015 30
2015
30
C0SO 1992
2015 30
2015 30
KPMG LLP
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2015 2015 30
2014 2015
6,139 1,782 6,690 1,987
697,513 202,471 760,118 225,763
SEC
10
2014 KPMG SEC

KPMG
KPMG
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2014

113.62

30

2016

29

2014 11 21

2015

2015

30

)

1934

32

UFJ
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10-K 2015 30

S-X

12 )
193

38 50 ) 131



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

Ogoooood
( )
2015 30 2014 30

( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
$ 3,518 399,715  $ 1,971 223,945
1,072 121,801 1,498 170,203
66 7,499 69 7,840
2,431 276,210 1,910 217,014
408 46,357 786 89,305
847 96,236 822 93,396
11 1,023 116,233 961 109,189
303 34,427 210 23,860
19 871 98,963 1,028 116,801
353 40,108 307 34,881
10,892 1,237,549 9,562 1,086,434
3,384 384,490 3,015 342,564
110 12,498 81 9,203
1,888 214,515 1,892 214,969
776 88,169 855 97,145
11,361 1,290,837 11,411 1,296,518
11,825 1,343,557 11,753 1,335,376
$ 40,236 4,571,614  $ 38,569 4,382,210
$ 127 14,430 $ 147 16,702
780 88,624 1,332 151,342
11 1,023 116,233 961 109,189
503 57,151 450 51,129
1,049 119,187 1,036 117,710
868 98,622 624 70,899
20 1,024 116,347 1,456 165,431
5,374 610,594 6,006 682,402
19 4,123 468,455 4,145 470,955
897 101,917 1,005 114,188
10,394 1,180,966 11,156 1,267,545

17
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0.0001
A 0.0001
30
2,001,622
1,978 14
B 0.0001
2014 30
245
C 0.0001
2014 30
20

14

22

25

2015

1,950

2015
622

2015
1,097

14

2014

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

OooooOodd
-(
( )
2015 30 2014 30
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
$ - - $ - -
18,073 2,053,454 18,299 2,079,132
11,843 1,345,602 9,131 1,037,464
5 568 31 3,522
(161) (18,293) (84) (9,544)
83 9,430 38 4,318
@ (114) @ (227)
(74) (8,408) @an (1,932)
29,842 3,390,648 27,413 3,114,665
$ 40,236 4,571,614 $ 38,569 4,382,210
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19

15
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OooooOodd
( )
30
2015 2014 2013
) ( ) ( ) ) ( ) ( )
$ 6,302 716,033 $ 5,797 658,655 $ 5,352 608,094
5,552 630,818 5,167 587,075 4,642 527,424
4,064 461,752 3,560 404,487 3,389 385,058
823 93,509 770 87,487 716 81,352
(2.861) (325,067) (2,592)  (294,503) (2,321)  (263,712)
13,880 1,577,046 12,702 1,443,201 11,778 1,338,216
2,079 236,216 1,875 213,038 1,932 219,514
872 99,077 900 102,258 876 99,531
474 53,856 507 57,605 468 53,174
336 38,176 328 37,267 412 46,811
494 56,128 435 49,425 397 45,107
547 62,150 507 57,605 451 51,243
14 1,591 453 51,470 3 341
4,816 547,194 5,005 568,668 4,539 515,721
9,064 1,029,852 7,697 874,533 7,239 822,495
(69) (7,840) 27 3,068 18 2,045
8,995 1,022,012 7,724 877,601 7,257 824,540
2,667 303,025 2,286 259,735 2,277 258,713
$ 6,328 718,987 $ 5,438 617,866 $ 4,980 565,828
$ 2.58 293 $ 2.16 245 $ 1.90 216
$ 4.26 484 $ 3.63 412 $ 3.20 364
$ 10.33 1,174 $ 8.65 983 $ 7.61 865
1,954 1,993 2,080
245 245 245
22 26 28
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$ 2.58 293 $ 2.16 245 $ 1.90 216
$ 4.25 483 $ 3.62 411 $ 3.19 362
$ 10.30 1,170 $ 8.62 979 $ 7.59 862
2,457 2,523 2,624
245 245 245
22 26 28
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30
2015 2014 2013
) «( ) I ¢ ) ( ) ( ) )
$ 6,328 718,987 $ 5,438 617,866 $ 4,980 565,828
(21) (2,386) (44) (4,999) 88 9,999
8 909 17 1,932 (33) (3,749)
D) (2,386) (6 (114) 1 114
8 909 - - - -
(122) (13,862) @n (3,068) 187 21,247
45 5,113 8 909 (70) (7,953)
[€h) (114) ®) (909) 16 1,818
1 114 3 341 ) (795)
172 19,543 65 7,385 39 4,431
(51) (5,795) (13) (1,477) (6) (682)
(102) (11,589) (46) (5,227) (29) (3,295)
26 2,954 9 1,023 6 682
1 114 [€)) (114) - -
) (6,476) (39) (4,318) 192 21,815
$6,271 712,511 $ 5,400 613,548 $ 5,172 587,643

106/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

ooOoooOoo
( )
C D
A B C
2012 30 2,139 245 31 $19,992 $7,809 $ (171) $27,630
4,980 4,980
192 192
5,172
C
14 () -
6 -
(€H)
16 - 179 179
@ (64) (64)
74 74
6 108 108
0.0825 (864) (864)
A (132) (1,414) (3,951) (5,365)
2013 30 2,031 245 27 $18,875 $7,974 $ 21 $26,870
(€] A
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2013

16

2014

@

30

30

0.10

14
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ooooooo
-( )
( )
« D
A B C
2,031 245 27 $18,875 $7,974 $21 $26,870
5,438 5,438
(38) (38)
5,400
19 ) -
4 _
(€]
(6H) 172 172
@ (86) (86)
2 20
5 91 91
(1,006) (1,006)
(79) (843)  (3,275) (4,118)
1,978 245 22 $18,299 $9,131 $ (17) $27,413
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2014

16

2015

@

30

30

0.12

14
14
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ooooooo
-( )
( )
C )
A B C
1,978 245 22 $18,299 $9,131 $ (17) $27,413
6,328 6,328
6N €D)
6,271
11 [®) -
4 _
@
() 187 187
(€Y (108) (108)
84 84
3 82 82
1,177) ,177)
(44) (471) (2,439) (2,910)
1,950 245 20  $18,073  $11,843 $ (74) $29,842
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2012 30
16
0.0825
A
2013 30
@
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OooooOodd
C )
A C
2,139 245 31 \2,271,491  \887,259  \ (19,429) 3,139,321
565,828 565,828
21,815 21,815
587,643
14 0 -
6 -
@
- 20,338 20,338
@ (7,272) (7,272)
8,408 8,408
6 12,271 12,271
(98,168) (98,168)
(132) (160,659)  (448,913) (609,571)
2,031 245 27 \2,144,578  \906,006 \2,38  \3,052,969
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2013

16

2014

@

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

oooooog
C )
A B C
30 2,031 245 27 \2,144,578 \906,006 \2,386 \3,052,969
617,866 617,866
(4,318) (4,318)
613,548
C
19 5) -
4 -
@
@ 19,543 19,543
() 9,771) 9,771)
10,226 10,226
5 10,339 10,339
0.10 (114,302) (114,302)
14 79) (95,782)  (372,106) (467,887)
30 1,978 245 22 \2,079,132 \1,037,464 \ (1,932)  \3,114,665
A
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2014

16

2015

@

30

30

0.12

14
14
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« )
A C
1,978 245 22 \2,079,132 \1,037,464 \ (1,932)  \3,114,665
718,987 718,987
(6,476) (6,476)
712,511
11 0) -
4 _
(€))
@ 21,247 21,247
) (12,271) (12,271)
9,544 9,544
3 9,317 9,317
(133,731) (133,731)
44 (53,515)  (277,119) (330,634)
1,950 245 20 \2,053,454 \1,345,602 \ (8,408)  \3,390,648
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30
2015 2014 2013
( ) ( ) ) _( ) ( ) ( )
$6,328  \718,987 $5,438  \617,866 $4,980 \565,828
2,861 325,067 2,592 294,503 2,321 263,712
110 12,498 - - - -
187 21,247 172 19,543 179 20,338
(82) (9,544) (90)  (10,226) 7% (8,408)
494 56,128 435 49,425 397 45,107
195 22,156 (580)  (65,900) 1,527 173,498
20 14 1,591 453 51,470 3 341
24 2,727 37 4,204 50 5,681
378 42,948 13 1,477 (345) (39,199)
19) (2,159) (53) (6,022) (38) (4,318)
(2,970)  (337,451) (2,395)  (272,120) (2,336) (265,416)
(41) (4,658) (379)  (43,062) (506) (57,492)
(13) (1,477) (56) (6,363) 40 4,545
(552)  (62,718) 107 12,157 506 57,492
118 13,407 513 58,287 702 79,761
20 (446)  (50,675) 998 113,393 (4,384) (498,110)
6,584 748,074 7,205 818,632 3,022 343,360
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30
2015 2014 2013
) ( ) ) ( ) ( ) )
(414)  (47,039) (553)  (62,832) 471) (53,515)
10 1,136 - - - -
(2,850)  (323,817) (2,572)  (292,231) (3.164) (359,494)
1,925 218,719 2,342 266,098 2,440 277,233
(93)  (10,567) (149)  (16,929) - -
/ (25) (2,841) ©) (1,023) 3) (341)
12 1,363 - - 34 3,863
(1,435)  (163,045) (941)  (106,916) (1,164) (132,254)
A 14 (2,910)  (330,634) (4,118)  (467,887) (5,365) (609,571)
14 (1,177)  (133,731) (1,008)  (114,302) (864) (98,168)
- - 450)  (51,129) - -
20 426 48,402 (999)  (113,506) 4,383 497,996
82 9,317 91 10,339 108 12,271
(108)  (12,271) (86) 9,771) (64) (7,272)
84 9,544 90 10,226 74 8,408
- - - - 12) (1,363)
- - - - ® (682)
(3,603)  (409,373) (6,478)  (736,030) (1,746) (198,381)
1 114 @ (114) - -
1,547 175,770 (215)  (24,428) 112 12,725
1,971 223,945 2,186 248,373 2,074 235,648
$3,518  \399,715 $1,971  \223,945 $2,186 \248,373
$2,486  \282,459 $2,656  \301,775 $ 595 \ 67,604
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2007 10 10
USA (Visa U.S.A. Inc.
USA ) (Visa International Service Association
) (Visa Canada Corporation
) (Inovant LLC )
2007 10
USA 2007 10
Visa Europe Limited
200
USA
(Visa Worldwide Pte. Limited VWPL )
GAAP
VIE
VIE
2015 18 A

14
2015
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50
OTTI

20 50

20

11
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2015
2015 30

2015

2015 30

20
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19

10

2013



2013
ASU

2013

2013

2015

16

2013 04

FASB ASU 2013-05

2014 10

FASB ASU 2013-11

2014 10

30

ASU

11

15

FASB

ASU

ASU
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12

12

2014 10



2014 FASB ASU 2014-09
ASU US GAAP
FASB ASU 2015-14 ASU
2016 10
ASU 2014-09
2014 FASB ASU 2014-12
2016 10
2015 FASB ASU 2015-03
ASU
SEC
2015 FASB ASU 2015-05
2015 FASB ASU 2015-16
2015 11 21.2
@
A
5.0 (b)
4.0
0.7

ASU

ASU 2014-09

ASU

ASU

FASB

ASU

ASU

16
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ASU 2015
2015 ASU 2015-15
2016 10
2016 10
2016
100
11.5



A

B

C

3,157,000
U.K.&l
71.68
30
U.K.&l

13.952

2.2

0.0001

0
0

.0001
.0001

2.8

1.12750

U.K.&l

U.K.&l
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2016
A
U.K.&l
2,480,500
A A
A A
U.K.&l
2015 10 19
U.K.&l
U.K.&l
A
U.K.&l
12
U.K.&l
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2015 11
LSA
LSA

LSA
LSA
@) U.K.&l

1.0 (b)

U.K.&l

U.K.&l

2007 10

2015 11

2015 30

285

PER

P/E
12
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15
P/E P/E
P/E
)
P/E
P/E PER
P/E
2015 2014 30 255
145 P/E
40 P/E 1.5 1.9
2015 30
2015 30
2015 30
12

ATM
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2015
2014 2013 143 EU GDP
143
EU GDP
20
2015 2014 30
2015 2014 30
B USA
Discover Financial
Services Inc. USA 04-CV-07844 S.D.N.Y.
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American Expess Travel Related Services Co., Inc.

04-Cv-0897 S.D.N.Y.

USA

1:05-md-01720-JG-JO E.D.N.Y.

USA

MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
USA
10
@
30
@
20

C04-4276 JSW

23(b) (3)

2015
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USA
CGC-04-436920 Cal. Super.
MDL 1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
MDL 1720
N.D. Cal.
MDL 1720
2015 10 22
MDL 1720
2015 2014
( )
$ 1,498 $ 49
1,056
450
(426) (57)
$ 1,072 $ 1,498
20
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B A
A 14
USA
USA
USA
USA
20
USA
USA USA
USA
O)
USA
() USA USA
USA
USA
2015 10 22 MDL 1720
23()(3) MDL
1720 MDL 1720
MDL 1720
USA
20
33.3333 66.6667
33.3333 66.6667
2014 26

33.3333 66.6667
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30
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
( )
$ 3,061 $ 2,277
$ 280 $ -
- 37
66 69
2,615 2,162
2,656 2,176
4 58
533 522
$ 7 $ 7
76 40

$5,777 $ 4,580 $3,504 $ 2,761 $ 7 $ 7

$ 255 $ 145

$ - $ - $ 13 $ 6 $ 255 $ 145

2015

2015
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2015

2014

30

2015

2015

20

2015

13

30

145

2015

2014

30

2015

45

2015 11
2015 30
30
P/E
15
35
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255
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OooooOodd
2015
2014 30 66 69
2015 30 2014 30
( ) ( )
$2,612 $ 3 $ - $2,615 $2,160 $ 2 $ - $2,162
2,652 4 - 2,656 2,174 2 - 2,176
4 - - 4 15 43 - 58
533 - - 533 521 1 - 522
7 - - 7 7 - - 7
$5,808 $ 7 $ - $5,815 $4,877 $ 48 $ - $4,925
(2,431) (1,910)
$3,384 $3,015
2015
3.4
( )
2015 30
$ 2,424 $ 2,427
3,373 3,377
10 - -
10 7 7
$ 5,804 $ 5,811
30

2015 2014 2013
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$ 31 $ 25 $ 27
3 8 5
®) ) 4
2 6 2
21 1 €))
®) 3) (15)
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2015 2014
30 30
( )
$ 137 $ 103
77 o1
12
76 40
63 73
$ 358 $ 307
2015 2014
30 30
( )
$ 627 $ 597
36 164
45 35
57 51
11 8
$ 776 $ 855
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6
2015 2014
30 30
( )
$ 71 $ 71
803 787
1,267 1,197
120 76
2,022 1,784
4,283 3,915
(2.395) (2,023)
$ 1,888 $ 1,892
2014
1.4
2015 30
2020
2016 2017 2018 2019
( )
$ 216 $ 169 $ 110 $ $ 76 $
2015 2014 2013
431 369 328 2015 2014
2013 198

173
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7
2015 2014 30 6.8
2.6 1.5
2007 10 EU
EU
EU
2015 30 2014 30
( )
$ 351 $ (19%) $ 155 $ 339 $ (162) $ 177
192 (67) 125 192 (54) 138
95 (59) 36 95 (48) 47
53 1n 36 52 (12) 40
$ 691 $ (339) $ 352 $ 678 $ (276) $ 402
$ 11,009 $ 11,009
$ 11,361 $11,411
2015 2014 2013
63 66 69 2015 30
2020
2016 2017 2018 2019
( )
$ 51 $ 49 $ 43 $ 43 $ 166 $352
2015 2014 2013
2014
15
12 2015
100 116
13 6.7
72
2014 170
126 60
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12
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2015 2014
30 30
(
$ 237 $ 199
255 145
81 82
20 11
75 73
200 114
$ 868 $ 624
2015 2014
30 30
(
@ $ 752 $ 855
77 92
68 58
$ 897 $ 1,005
2015
285
2015 30
15
2015
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3.0
397 2015
2015 28
B C
0.00 0.75 0.07 2015
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30

65
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30 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(
983 $ 897 20 $ 25
47 46 _
40 42 1
40 84 - )
(105) (83) (€)) C))
- (3) - -
1,005 $ 983 18 $ 20
994 $ 977
1,117 $ 1,055 - 3 -
(6) 135 - -
16 10 3 4
(105) (83) (©) (O)
1,022 $ 1,117 - 3 _
17 $ 134 @) s (20)
36 $ 164 - 3 -
(©)] @ (€©)] A
(10) (23) (15) an
17 $ 134 (18 $ 20)
30 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
( )
$ 232 $ 121 $ G 3 @)
()] (16) ®) ®)
$ 223 $ 105 $ (@ $ (15
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( )
$ 14 $ Q)
@) 3
$ 7 $ (@

30

2015 2014

( )
$ a9 s (30)
$ - $ -
$ a9 s (30)
$ - $ -
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

( )

$ 47 $ 46 $ 43 $ - $ - % -
40 42 35 1 1 1
72) (68) (61) - - -
) ®) ©) (€)] €) ©)
1 1 28 () (€)) (€9)
$ 9 $ 13 $ 36 $ @ $ B $ ©®
- ?) - - - -
7 3 - - - -
$ 16 $ 13 $ 336 $ @ 3$ B $ ©®

142/243



@

@

@

&)

2016
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50 80

25
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2015 2014 2015 2014
( )
$ 119 $ 18 $ - $ @
® “) 2 1
- (3) -

7 11 3 3

$ 118 $ 2 $ 5 $ 2
$ 134 $ 35 $ 1 $ @

2015 2014 2013
4.33% 4.27% 4.81%
2.43% 2.59% 2.76%
4.27% 4.81% 3.85%
2.59% 2.76% 2.21%
7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
4.00% 4.00% 4.50%
4.00% 4.50% 4.50%
)
35
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2015 30
66 33

2015 2014 30

30

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

( )
$ 11 $ 2 $ 11 $ 2
$ 169 $ 144 169 144
! 66 106 66 106
@ 74 53 74 53
$31 $25 31 25
671 767 671 767

$ 756 $ 842 $ 235 $ 250 $31 $25 $1,022 $1,117

@

2015 2014
2015 2014
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( )
2015 $ 16 $ 3
2014 $ 10 $ 4
2016 $ 9 $ 3
2016 $ 146 $ 3
2017 $ 92 $ 3
2018 $ 94 $ 3
2019 $ 93 $ 3
2020 $ 93 $ 2
2021-2025 $ 462 $ 5
401k
401k 2015 2014

2013 49 46 44
401k
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11

30
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2015
43.5 2014
2015 30
2015 2014 30 2.2
2015 2014
30 30
( )
$ 1,023 $ 961
154 148
1,178 1,242
971 1,554
$ 3,326 $ 3,905
2015 2014 30
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12
2015 2014 30
1.2 2015 30
76
13
2015 2014
2013 29
27 14
2016 117
2015 30

73

2015 30

13
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10

10

14
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2015

2014

2015
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2015 2014
30 30
( )
$ 1,806 $ 1,798
82 94
$ 1,888 $ 1,892
2015
2013 54
2014 2013
2015 13
A
2015 19
C
A 1.6483
C A 4.0
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A
2015 30 A
A
()
A 1,950 - 1,950
B 245 1.6483? 405
c 20 4.0000 79
2,434
@ A
©) B A
10
2015 2014
(
)
(€)) 44 79
O $ 65.98 $  52.12
$ 2,910 $ 4,118
@
@
2014 10 5.0 2015 30
2.8 2014 10
2015 10



A
2014
2015
A
B
B
@
B B
A
c 2015 30
C

2014
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B

132

2015

$ 450

$ 53.83

1.6483

405

2015
30



2015
2015 10

1.2
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0.12
0.14 B C
2015 11 13
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15
2015 @
@ @ @® ®/®) A @ B /@)
A $ 5,044 1,954 $ 2.58 $ 6,328 2,457® $ 2.58
B ) 1,045 245 $ 4.26 $ 1,042 245 $ 4.25
c ) 224 22 $ 10.33 $ 223 22 $ 10.30
@) 15 $ 15
$ 6,328
2014 @
@ @ ®) /@) ®» @ ®) )/ @)
A $ 4,307 1,993 $ 2.16 $ 5,438 2,523 $ 2.16
B ) 892 245 $ 3.63 $ 890 245 $ 3.62
c ) 222 26 $ 8.65 $ 221 26 $ 8.62
@) 17 $ 16
~§ 5,43
2013 @
® @ ® OUO) ® @ ®) OUO)
A $ 3,959 2,080 $ 1.90 $ 4,980 2,624 $ 1.90
B ) 786 245 $ 3.20 $ 784 245 $ 3.19
C ) 216 28 $ 7.61 $ 215 28 $ 7.59
) 19 $ 19
T $ 4,080
@
2015
14
@)
B 2015 405 2014 2013 413
2015 2014 2013
87 103 113
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®
2015 2014
*
®)
16
2007
2007
RSU
EIP
54 51
EIP
2015 2014
@
O]
®
*
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2013
2015 2014 2013
14 B C
EIP
RSA
A 236
EIP
10
2015 2014 2013
184 172 179
2015 2014 2013
53 2015 2014 2013
2015
14
10
2013
2015 2014 2013
4.55 4.80 6.08
1.5% 1.3% 0.8%
22.0% 25.2% 29.3%
0.8% 0.8% 0.9%
$ 12.04 $ 11.03 $ 9.76
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(1) 2014

42
@
®

21

*

2014 10

2015
2015
2015

(1) 2015

@

2015

187

17

EIP

RSU

RSA

RSU
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1PO
2015
67 33 2014 58
2013
2015
23 2013
1PO
2015
(€Y
11,649,704 $ 22.52
1,444,376 $ 62.87
(379,662) $ 50.53
(3,036,701) $ 20.53
30 9,677,717 $ 28.07 5.0 $ 402
30 7,083,305 $ 18.26 3.7 $ 364
30
@ 9,392,332 $ 27.26 4.9 $ 398
69.66
2015 30
2014 2013 134
176 86 65 59
2015 30
1.4
RSA RSU
RSA A RSA
A
A
RSU RSU
A
RSU A
2015 2014 2013 RSA
63.71 49.98 36.80 2015 2014 2013
62.88 49.44 36.55
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2015 2014 2013 RSA RSU
132 126 98
2015 RSA RSU
@
RSA RSU RSA RSU RSA RSU
2014 10
5,234,184 1,866,932  $40.00 $ 39.69
2,145,439 753,733  $63.71 $ 62.88
(2,702,580) (1,005,707) $ 35.50 $ 35.43
(612,356)  (172,436) $ 48.32  $ 47.86
2015 30
4,064,687 1,442,522  $54.09 $ 53.80 1.5 1.4 $ 283 $ 100
(1) 2015 69.66
2015 30 RSA RSU 138
38 RSA 1.5 RSU 1.4
2015
@
2014 10 2,075,240 $ 44.32
@) 785,884 $ 69.78
(1,221,020) $ 42.68
(24,924) $ 42.68
(351,218) $ 54.25
2015 30 1,263,962 $ 57.61 0.7 $ 88
(1) 2015 69.66
@
500
2015 2014 2013
69.78 56.37 41.04
2015 2014 2013
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2015 30
11 0.7
A
ESPP ESPP
15 A
20 2015
2015
2013 136 134 94
30
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 95 $ 63 $ 57 $ 39 $ 31 $ 107 $ 392
112 121 121 119 110 71 654
$ 207 $ 184 $ 178 $ 158 $ 141 $ 178 $1,046
13
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2015 30

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

$3,237 $3,130 $2,670 $2,2056 $1,610 $ 3,965 $16,817
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18

2013

19

2015

2015

Q)
10
2014 2013
2.4 2.3
2014 30
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10
10
2015 2014 30
2015 2014
2015 2014 2013

$ 7,214 $ 6,140 $ 5,992
1,781 1,584 1,265
$ 8,995 $ 7,724 $ 7,257

2.0

2015 2014 2013

$ 1,91 $ 2,353 $ 568
168 237 (58)
300 274 239
2,459 2,864 749
181 (576) 1,401
1 (31) 114
26 29 13
208 (578) 1,528
$ 2,667 $ 2,286 $ 2,277
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2015 2014

$ 141 $ 134
51 14
20 14
391 558
191 235
50 35
1 21
203 210
164 139
(40) (34)
1,172 1,326
(315) (298)
(3,964) (4,000)
(153) (125)
- 12)
(4,432) (4,435)

$ (3,260) $ (3,109)
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2015 2014
30 30
$ 871 $ 1,028
@ 11 8
@ (19) -
(4,123) (4,145)
$ (3,260) $ (3,109)
@
2015 2014
2015 30 30 19

177 2028 2035
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35
30
2015 2014 2013
(G ) (G (@) C ) )
$ 3,148 3BYH $ 2,704 3B % $ 2,540 35 %
194 2 % 129 2 % 42 1%

@327) (O] (278) )% (328) G

- % (191) O - -
(239) @k - - % . - %
(109) W% (78) QL)% 23 -
$ 2,667 0% $ 2,286 0% $ 2,277 31%
2015 2014 30
2015 296
296 239
2014 264
191
2014 30 2013 31
2014 264
2014
2012
2013
2013
2015 2014 30 77 o1
2015 2014 30 627 597
2015 2014 30
75 73
752 855
2015 30 6.4
2023 30
2015 2014 2013 192
168 158

0.08 0.07 0.06
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2015 2014 30
1.1 1.3
859 1.1
2015 2014

( )
10 $ 1,303 $ 1,023
44 139
(413) (54)
120 199
©) *
30 $ 1,051 $ 1,303

2015
2014 2013 10
2015 2014
2013
2015 2014 30
33 39
2009 2010 2011 IRS
2008 IRS
2009
2006 2007 2008

2006

162/243



2013

2014

CRA
CRA

CRA

CRA

163/243

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2003 2009
CRA 2010

2015

2002

12



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)

oOoOooodn
20

2015 2014
10 $ 1,456 $ 5
- 1,056
14 453
(446) (58)
30 $ 1,024 $ 1,456

USA

2015 2014
10 $ 1,449 $ -
- 1,056
- 450
(426) CD)
30 $ 1,023 $ 1,449

2014 14 MDL1720
4.0 2014 27
1.1
2014 450
2014
2014 2015 57 426

2015 30 1.0
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MDL
2005 USA
MDL1720
1PO
1PO
350
2012 10 29
USA
4.0
10
2012 12 10 4.0
2014 1 14
2015 28
2015 14
1,179

2015 28
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2013 12 16 2000
54.0
MDL1720 2014 11 26
MDL
2013 50
MDL1720
USA
MDL1720
USA
2004
2012 11 27
MDL1720
MDL1720
MDL 1720
JG JO 1:05-md-01720-JG-JO (E.D.N.Y.)
MDL1720
MDL1720
23 ()(C)
MDL
48
2014 12 23
MDL1720
2015 15
EC 2009 EC

2012 31 2013
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EC

2014 26 EC

EC

2013

2013

2000 2004 19

POS

20

20

50
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2015 11

2010 12
10

45

2014 26

168/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

2013 ACCC
2010 2010 10
DCC
ATM DCC

2015 2010
10 2010
47 () 18
ACCC

2010 11 19

2015 10 15 2015 11 12

ATM
ATMH National ATM Council

2011 10 12 ATM 13 ATM
USA Plus System, Inc.
ATM

ATM
ATM
ATM

2011 10 ATM

2011 10

2013 13

2015
2015 28

2012 13
CID 15
CID
PIN
CID
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2012 21

15 16930-2
Amendment

PIN

2014 11 25

2015

12

PIN

Pulse Network

23
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235.7 () Durbin

Pulse Network LLC
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2015 2014
2015 2015 2015 2014 2015
30 30 31 12 31
$ 3,571 $ 3,518 $ 3,400 $ 3,382 $ 13,880
$ 2,283 $ 2,262 $ 2,281 $ 2,238 $ 9,064
$ 1,512 $ 1,697 $ 1,550 $ 1,569 $ 6,328
A $ 0.62 $ 0.69 $ 0.63 $ 0.63 $ 2.58
B $  1.02 $ 1.14 $  1.04 $ 1.0 $  4.26
c $ 2.48 $ 2.78 $ 2.53 $ 2.54 $  10.33
A $  0.62 $  0.69 $  0.63 $ 0.63 $ 2.58
B $ 1.02 $ 1.14 $ 1.04 $ 1.04 $ 4.25
c $  2.48 $  2.77 $  2.52 $ 2.53 $  10.30
2014 2014 2014 2013 2014
30 (¢} 30 31 12 31
$ 3,229 $ 3,155 $ 3,163 $ 3,155 $ 12,702
$ 1,552 $ 2,020 $ 2,048 $ 2,077 $ 7,607
$ 1,073 $ 1,360 $ 1,598 $ 1,407 $ 5,438
A $  0.43 $  0.54 $ 0.63 $  0.55 $  2.16
B $ 0.73 $ 0.91 $ 1.06 $  0.93 $  3.63
C $ 1.73 $ 2.17 $ 2.53 $ 2.21 $ 8.65
A $ 0.43 $ 0.54 $ 0.63 $ 0.55 $ 2.16
B $ 0.72 $ 0.01 $ 1.06 $ 0.93 $  3.62
C $ 1.72 $ 2.17 $ 2.52 $ 2.20 $ 8.62
( )2014 450
20
() 2015
14
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
phoieer 20, Soptember 30,
15 M4
(b rrdllioms, except par value data)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents s 3518 5 1,971
Restricted cash—litigation escrow (Mote 3} 1,072 1,488
Investment securities {Mote 4)
Trading 66 69
Available-for-sabe 2,431 1,810

Sattlement receivable 408 TEE
Accounts receiable 847 B22
Customer collateral (Note 11) 1,023 961
Curmrent portion of client incentives 103 210
Deferred tax assets (Mote 19) B71 1,028
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (MNobe 5) 353 07

Total current assets 10,892 9,562
Investment securities, available-for-sale (Note 4) 3384 3015
Client incentives 110 &1
Propery, equipment and technology, net (Note 8) 1,288 1,882
Other agsets (Mote 5) 776 E55
Intangible assets, net (Mote 7) 11,361 11,411
Goodwill (Note T) 11,825 11,753

Total assets 5 40,238 S 38,562
Liabilities
Accounts payable ] 127 % 147
Settlement payabie T80 1,332
Customer collateral {Note 11) 1,023 861
Accrued compensation and banefits 503 450
Clignt incentives 1,043 1,036
Accrued liabdities (Note 8) 868 624
Accrued litgation (Mote 20) 1,024 1,456

Total current labilities 5374 6,006
Deferred tax kabilites (Note 19) 4123 4,145
Other liabiliies (Mote &) &ay 1,005

Total liabilties 10,384 11,158

Commitrments and contingencies (MNate 17)

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidaled financial stalements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS—{Continued)
Sapdember 30, Septembar 30,
2015 2014
fin rréllicns, excepd par value data)
Equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 25 shares autharized and none isswed § — 5 —

Class A comman steck, $0.0001 par value, 2,001 622 shares authorized, 1,950 and 1,978 shares

issued and cutstanding at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 14) - -
Class B comman stock, 20.0001 par value, 622 shares authorized, 245 shares issued and

outstanding at September 30, 2015 and 2014 (Note 14) —_ -
Class C commaon stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,087 shares authorized, 20 and 22 shares issued and

outstanding at September 20, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Mote 14) - -

Additional paid-in capital 18,073 18,288
Accumulated income 11,843 9131
Accumnulated other comprehensive ioss, net
Imeestment securities, available-for-sale 5 i
Defined banefit pension and other postretirement plans (161) (84)
Drerivativie nstruments classied as cash flow hedges 23 g
Fareign currency translation adjustments (1) (2)
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss, nat (T4) (17
Total equity 29,842 27413
Taotal liabilities and equity ] 40,236 3 36,568

Sa Accompanying nobes, which are an inlegral part of these consolidaled Francial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended
Seplember 30,

2015 P 2013
{in millions, excopt per share data)

Operating Revenues

Senvice revenues - 8302 = 5797 & 5,352
Data processing revenuas 5,552 5167 4642
International ransacton revenues 4,064 3,560 3,388
CRRET PeVENUESs B23 770 Ti6
Client incentives {2,B51) 12,5992} (2,321}
Total operating revenues 13,880 12702 11,778
Operating Expenses
Pergonmnel 2,078 1,875 1,932
Markating arz 900 &876
MNetwork and processing 474 507 4688
Predessional fees 336 328 412
Depreciation and amortization 494 435 397
General and adminsirative 547 507 451
Litigation provisian (Mote 20) 14 453 3
Tatal aperating expenses 4,818 5,005 4,539
Oparating Incoma 6,064 7687 7.238
MNon-operating (expense) income (&%) 27 18
Incame befone income Bxes 8,995 7.724 7,257
Income tax provision (Note 19) 2,667 2286 2277
MNet income § 6328 35 5438 35 4,930

SHe accompanying rofes, which are an inlegral part of hese consoldaled Fnancial stataments
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS—{Continued)

For thi Years Ended
Seplember 30,

2M5 2014 213
ire millicays, except por share data)

Basie earnings per share (Mote 15)

Class A common stock $ 258 % 216 3 1.90

Class B commen steck $ 428 3% 363 % 320

Class C comman stock 5 1033 3§ 865 & 761
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding (Mote 15)

Class A common stock 1.854 1,952 2,080

Class B common stack 245 245 245

Class C common stock 22 2% 28
Diluted earnings per share {Note 15}

Class A common stock 5 258 5 216 5 140

Class B common stock H 425 5 32 5 3.19

Class C common stock 5 1030 5 862 S 7458
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding (Note 15)

Class A common Stock 2457 2523 2624

Class B common stock 248 245 245

Class C common stock 22 26 28

See accompanyimg notes, which are an integral part of these consoldaled financial stetements
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended
Septerber 30,
25 2014 013
(i milllicas)

Net Imcome

§ 3z = 5438 3 4,880
Other camprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Irmvestment securities, available-for-sale:
Met unrealized (loss) gain

(21) (44) 1]
Income tax effect 8 17 (33)
Reclassification adjustment for net (gain) loss realized in net income {21) {1} 1
Income tax effect a8 — —
Defined banefit pension and other postretirement plans:
het unrealized sctuaral (kss) gain and poor senvice cradit {122) (27) 187
Income tax effect 45 a (T
Amortization of actuarial (gain) koss and prior service credit realized in net income (1) {8) 16
Income tax effect 1 3 )]
Dertvative instruments classified as cash flow hedges:
Met unrealized gain i72 &5 3%
Income tax effect (51) {13} 33}
Reclassificaton adjustment for net gain realized in net income {102} (46} {29)
Income tax effect b a &
Fareign currency ranslation adjustments i {1} —
Other comprehensive (loss) ncome | net of tax (57) (28) 192
Comprehensive income

¥ 6271 3 5,400 3 5,172

See accompanying noles, which are an integral part of these consolidaled financial statements.
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COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance as of September 30, 2012
Mat income

Othaer comprahanshee incoma, net of fax
Coimprahenshoe neoms

Conversion of dass C common stock upon sale info
pubibc market

lssuance and vesting of resticted slock and
paforance-based shanes

Share-based compensation, net of forfeitures (Mote 18)
Restricted stock and performance-based shares seitled
n cash for tLaxes

Excess tax beneft for share-based compensabion
Cash proceeds from issuance of common stock under
amployes equly plans

Cash dividends declared and paid, at a quartarly
amount of $0.0825 per as-corverted share
Repurchase of class A& common slock

Balance as of September 30, 2043

oOoOooodn

Comman Stock "‘Th:“"
Huditional Accumulated Comprehensive Total
Class i,  Class B Class ©  Paic-ln Capital Inscts i {Lass) Incomes Ecquity
(in millions, sxcept par share data)

2138 245 3 5 15582 5 Ta08 0§ {171} & 27 630
4,080 4980

192 192

5172

14 {4) —

-] -
= 178 178
(2 {64) {64)

74 T4

[ 103 108
{B64) (B64)
{132) {1,414) (3.951) {5,365)
2,031 245 2T 5 18875 5 7974 % 1 4 26,870

I Decreass in Class A common stock relaled bo forfalures of reslriched slock awards is less than 1 miliah shares.

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of theze consolidaled financial statements.
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —{Continued)
Comman Slock """"’;’h":“"d
Addtional Acoumudated Comprehensive Total
Closs & ClassB ClassC  Paid-in Copital Incoma (Loss) Income Equity
{ir melliors, axcopt por share data)
Balance as of September 30, 2013 2,031 245 v 5 18875 5 TAT4 & 21 26,870
Hel income 5,438 5438
Other comprehenshe boss, net of o (38} {38)
Camgrehensie income 5,400
Comwersion of dass C common sbock upon sale into 19 (5) —
plus market
Issuance and vesting of restiched stock and 4 i
parformance-based shanes
Share-based compensation, net of forfeitures h
{Ncte 18] {1} 172 172
Resiriched sfock and perfarmance-based shares
setlled i cash fer basoes (1} (e8) {58)
Excess Ly benefit for share-based compensation a0 aa
Cash procesds from issuance of common stodk ender 5 g1 a1
employes equty plans
Cash dividends declared and paid, at a quarterly
ameunt of 50,10 pér as-converted share (1,006) (1,008)
Repurchase of class & common stock (Note 14) {79} (B43) (3,275) (4,118}
Balance as of Septomber 30, 2014 1,978 245 22§ 18,298 § 8131 S [17) 27413

1 Decrease in Class A common stock relates to forfeitures of restricled stock awards,

See accompanying nofes, which are an integral part of thezse consoldated fnancial statements.
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Balance as of Seplember 30, 20144
el income

Other comprehansive income, net of tax
Comgprehenshe ncome

Conversion of dass C common stodk upon sale ino
public market

Issumance and vesting of restricted stock and
parformance-bassd shares

Share-based compensation, net of forfeitures (Nole 18)
Resiricled stock and performance-based shares seitled
in cash for taxes

Excess tax benelt for share-based compensation

Cash procesds from issuanes of sommaon Sod wnder
amployes equily plans

Cash dividends declared and paid, al a quarterly
amount of $0.12 per as-comated share (Note 14)

Repurchase of dass A common ook (Male 14)
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VISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY —{Continued)
Comman Stock mg::‘“
Additional Accumadated Comprehensive Total
Class & Class B ClassC  Paiddn Capital Incarms (Lo=s) Income Equity
(i millicas, sxcept per share data)

1,978 245 22 5 18,298 & 3131 & 17y § 27413
6,328 6,328

(57) 57)

6271

11 {2y —

4 =
e 187 167
{1} {108) {108)

24 84

3 a2 g2
(1,177) (1,177}
(44} {471} (2,429) (2,810
1,950 245 0 5 18,073 % 11,843 5§ (74 & 20842

Balance as of September 30, 2015

I Decreass in Class A common stock ratales Lo forfeilunes of restricted sbock awards,

See accompanying noles, which are an inlegral part of these consolidaled fhancial statements.
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VISA INC.
COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended
Sepiember 30,
2015 014 213
{iry milHons)

Operating Activities
Net income 5 6328 35 5438 § 4 8980
Adjustments to recencile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of cllent incentives 2,881 2,592 2321

Falr value adjustment for the Visa Ewrope put option 110 - -

Share-based com pansation 187 172 175

Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation (84) (90} {74)

Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment, technology and intangible assels 494 435 a7

Deterved income taxes 185 (580) 1827

Litigation provision (Mote 20) 14 453 3

Other 24 a7 50
Change In operating assets and liabilities:

Settlement recenable 3ra 13 {345)

Accounts recevable (19) (53) {38)

Client incentives (2,870) (2.393) (2,336)

Other assats (41) (379) {506)

Accounts payabie (13) (56) 40

Settliement payabie (552) 107 506

Accrued and other labilites 118 513 02

Accrued [itigation {Mate 20) (448) 998 {4,384)
Met cash provided by operating actvities 6,584 7,205 3.022
Investing Activitles
Purchases of property, equipment, technology and intangible assets (414) (553) (471)
Proceeds from sales of property, equipment and technalogy 10 - -
Investment securites, available-for-sale:

Purchases {2,880) {2,572 (3, 164)

Proceads from maturities and sakes 1,925 2342 2440
Acquisions, net of cash receed (Mot 7) (93) {149) -
Purchases of [ contributions to other investments (25) (9} (3)
Proceeds / distributions from other investments 12 — 34
Net cash used in investing activities (1,435) (941) (1,164)

See accompanying noles. which are an integral part of these consolidalted fnancial statements.
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WISA INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Conlinued)
For the Years Ended
30,
2015 24 2013
{in millions)
Financing Activities
Repurchase of class A& commaon stock (Hote 14) {2,910} {4.118) [5,365)
Dividends paid (Mote 14) (1.177) {1,006) (BG4)
Deposts into litigaton escrow account—UL. 5. retrospective responsibility plan (Note 3) - (450] —
Payments from (return to) litigation escrow account—LE.5. retrospective responsibility plan (Note 3 and Mote
20) 428 (S959) 4 383
Cash proceeds from lssuance of common Stock under employes equity plans 82 o™ 108
Restricted stock and performance-based shares setthed in cash for taxes (108) (88) (64)
Excess tax benefit for share-based compensation a4 30 T4
Payments for earn-out related to PlaySpan acquisiton — — (12)
Principal payments on capital lease obligations = - (&)
et cash used in financing activities (3,603) {6.478) (1,748)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents 1 (1) —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,847 (215) 112
Cash and cash equivabents at beginning of year 1,971 2,188 2074
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3518 5 1871 & 2186
Supplemental Disclosure
Income taxes pakd, net of refunds $ 2486 5 265 & 505
Accruals related to purchases of property, aguipment, tachnolegy and intangible asseis 5 B1 5 62 § 46

Sas accompanying noles, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
64
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2015

Hote 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles

Organization . |n a series of transactions from October 1 to Octobar 3, 2007, Visa Inc. ("Visa® or the *Company®) underook a rearganization in
which Visa U.8.A. Inc. ("Visa U5.A"), Visa International Service Assocliation {"Visa International™), Visa Canada Corporation ("Visa Canada”) and
Inovant LLC ("Inovant™) became dwect of indirect subsidiaries of Visa and established the U5, retrospective responsibility plan (the "October 2007
regrganization” or “reorganization”), See Nate 3—U. 5. Retrospective Responsibitty Plan and Poleptial Visa Europe Ligbitfies , The reorganization
was refiected as a single trangacton on October 1, 2007 using the purchase method of accounting with Visa U.S.A. as the accounting acquirer, Visa
Europe Limited ("Visa Eurape”) did not become a subsidiary of Visa Inc,, but rather remained owned and governed by its European member
financial institutions, See Mote 2—\Visa Ewope

Visa i3 a global payments technology company that connects consumers, businesses, linancial Instilutions and govemments in mone than 200
countries and territones 1o fast, secure and reliable electronic payments, Visa and s whally-owned consolidated subgidianes, incheding Visa LS4,
Viga Imternational, Visa Wordwide Pte. Limited ("VWPL™), Visa Canada, Inovant and CyberSource Corporation ("CyberSource”), operate one of the
workd's most advanced procmlng nebworks — VisaNet — which facilitates authorization, ¢ lunng and settlement of par:.rment transactions
worldwide, Visahet also offers fraud protection for account holders and assured payment for merchants. Visa is not a bank and does not issue
cards, extend credd or set rates and fees for account holders on Visa-branded cards and payment products. |n moast cases, account holders and
merchant relationships belong to, and afe managed by, Visa's financial institution clients. Visa provides a wide varnety of payment solutions that
support payment products that issuers can offer to their account holders; pay now with debt, pay ahead with prepaid or pay later with credit
products, These services facilitate transactions on Visa's network among account holders, merchants, financial institutions and governments in
mature and emerging markets giobally,

Consolidation and basis of presentation . The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Visa and its consolidated entities and
are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5, GAAF®), The Company
congolitates its majority-owned and controlled entities, including variable interest entities (“VIEs") for which the Company is the primary beneficiary.
The Company's Investments in VIEs have not been material to ks consolidated financial statements as of and for the periods presented. All
significant intercom pany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

On March 18, 2015, the Compgany compléted a four -for-one Spht of its class A commaon stock effected i the form of 3 stock dividend. All per
share amounts and nurmber of shares outstanding n the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are presented on @ post-spit
basis. See Mole T4—Slockhokdens” Equily

Beginning in fiscal 2015, cument income tax receivable i included in the prepaid expenses and other curent assets line. Previously, it had
been presented separately on the consolidated bakance sheets All phor period amounts within the consolidated financial statermnents have been
reclagsified to conform to current period presentation. The reclassification did not affect the Company's financial position, total operating revenues,
et income, comprehensive income, of cash flows as of and for the periods presented.

The Company's activities are intarrelated, and each activity is dependent upon and supportive of the other. All significant operating decisions
are basad on analysis of Visa as a single global business. Accordingly, the Company has one reporiable segment, Payment Services,

Use of estimales . The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make esbimates
and assumptions about future events. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabiiites at the date of the consalidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Future actual results could differ materially from these estimates. The use of astimates in specific accounting policies is described
further below as appropriate,

Cash and cash equivalents . Cash and cash egquivalens include cash and certain highly liguid imvestments with ariginal maturities of 90 days or
less from the date of purchase. Cash equivalents are primarily recorded at cost, which approximates fair value due to thelr generally short
maturites
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VISA INC.

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Cantinued)
September 30, 2015

Restricled cash—/{tigabion escrow . The Company malntains an escrow account from which monetary llabllities from settiements of, or
judgments in, the U.5. covered ftigation are paid. Sea Nole 3—U.5. Refrospective Responsibilily Plan and Patential Visa Europe Liabiites and
Note 20— eqal Matters for a discussion of the U5 covered litigation. The eéscrow funds are held in money market investments, togethar with the
interest earmed, less applicable taxes payable, and classified as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. Interest earmed on escrow
funds is incleded in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of cperations.

Investments and fair valne. The Company measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a Babdity in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair vabue measurements
are reported under a three-level valuation hierarchy. See Mofe 4—Fair Value Measurements and Investmeants . The classification of the Company’s
financial assets and kabilites within the hierarchy s as follows:

Leve/ T —Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical agsets or liabilities. The Company’s
Level 1 assets include meney market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and U.S. Treasury securities.

Leve! 2 —Inputs to the valuation methodology can include: {1) guoted prices in active markets for simitar (not identical) assets or liabilities;
(2} queted prices for identical or similar assets in nen-active markets; (3) Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assat or lability,
of (4) inputs that are dert'ed principally from or corroborated by obserabie market data. The Company's Level 2 assets and labiities include
commercial paper, U.S. govemnmment-sponsored debt securnibes, corporate debt securities and forelgn exchange derivative instruments.

Level 3 —Inputs to the vaklsation methodology ane uncbsenable and cannot be comoborated by ebservable market data, The Cempany's Level
3 assets and liabilites include auction rate securities and the Visa Euwope put opbion.

Trading investrient securiies include mutual fund equity security investments related to various employee compensation and benefit plans.
Trading activily in these investments is at the direction of the Company’s employees. These nvestments are held in a trust and are not available for
the Company's operational or iquidity needs. Interest and dividend income and changes in fair valué are recorded in non-operating income, and
offset in personnel expense on the consolidated statements of cperations.

Avaikable-for-sake investment securities include investments in debt and equity securibes. These securities are recorded at cost at the time of
purchase and are carred at fair value. The Company considers these securities to be available-for-sale to meet working capital and Bguidity needs,
Investments with original maturities of greater than 90 days and stated maturities of less than one year from the bakance sheet date, or investments
that the Company intends to sell within one year, are classified as current assets, while all other securities are classified as non-current assets. The
majority of these investments are classified as non-cument as they have stated maturities of more than one year from the balance sheet date
Howewver, thege imestments are generally avaitable to meet short-term liquidity needs, Unrealized gains and logges are reported in accumulated
otfver compeehansive Income or loss on the consolidated balance sheets untl realized. The specific identification method is used to calculate
realized gain or loss on the sale of marketable secunties, which is recorded in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of operations,
Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned and are included in non-operating income on the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company evaluates s debt and equity Securithes for other-than-temporary Impairment, or OTTI, on an ongaing basis. When there has
bEn @ decling in fair value of & debt or equity security below the amortized cost basis, the Company recognizes OTTH T (1) it has the inlent to sell
the security, (2) it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before recovery of the amortized cost basis; or (3) it does not
expect o recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. The Company has not presanted required separate disclosures because its gross
unrealized loss positions in debt or equity securities for the periods presented are not material.

The Company applies the equity method of accounting for investments in other entities when it holds between 20% and 50% ownership in the
antity or when it axercises significant influznce. Under the equity method, the Company's share of each entity’s profit or loss is refiected in non-
operating income on the consolidated statements of operations, The equity method of accounting is alse used for flowe-through entities such as
limited partnerships
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and limied liability companies when the investment ownership percentage Is equal to or greater than 5% of outstanding ownership Interests,
regardiess of whether the Company has significant influgnce over the investees,

The Company apphes the cost method of accounting far mvestments (n other entities when it holds less than 20% ownership in the entity and
does not exercise significant influence, of for fiow-through entities when the investment ownership is less than 5% and the Company does not
exercise significant influence. These investments consist of equity holdings in non-public companies and are recorded in other assets on the
consolidated balance sheets.

The Company regularly reviews investments accourted for under the cost and squity methods for possible impairment which generally
invalies an analysis of the Facts and changes in ciicumstances influencing the investment, expectations of the entity's cash fows and capital needs,
and the viability of its business model.

Financial mstruments . The Company considers the following to be financial instruments: cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash-litigation
escrow, trading and avaifable-for-sale irmeestment securities, settlement receivable and payable, customer collateral, non-marketable egquity
imvestments, setthement risk guarantee, derivative instruments, and the \Visa Europe put option. See Nole 4—Fair Value Measurements and
Investments .

Selftlement receivable and payable . The Company operates systems for authorizing, clearing and settling payment transactions worldwide
U.5. dollar settements with the Company's financial institution clients are typically settled within the same day and do not result in a recaivable or
payable balance, while settiement in currencies other than the U.S. dollar generally remain outstanding for one to two business days, resulting in
amounts due from and to clients, These amounts are presented as settliement receivable and settiement payable on the conzolidated balance
Shisets,

Customer cofaleral . The Company holds cash deposits and other non-cash assets from certaln clents in order to ensure their performance of
seftlement obligations arsing from Visa-branded cards and payment products processed in accardance with the Company's rules, The cash
collateral assats are restricted and fully offset by comesponding liabilies and both balances are presented on the consolidated balance sheets. Non-
cash collateral assets are held an behalf of the Company by a third party and are not reconded on the consolidated balance shaets. See Nate 11—
Sattlernent Guaraniee Management ,

Chenl incenlives. The Company enters into kong-term contracts with financial institution clients and other business pariners Tor varnous
programs designed to build payments volume, increase Visa-branded card and product acceptance and win merchant reuting transactions over
Visa's network. These incentives are pnimarily accounted for as reductions to operating revenues or as operating expenses if a separate identifiable
penefit at fair value can be established. The Company generally capitalizes advance incentive payments under these agreaments if select criteria
are met. The capitalization criteria inchude the existence of future economic benefits to Visa, the existence of legally enforceable recoverabiity
language (e.g., early termination clauses), managements abilty and intent to enforce the recoverability language and the ability to generate future
earmings from the agreement in excess of amounts deferred, Capitalized amounts are amortized over the shorter of the period of contractual
recoverability or the corresponding peried of economic benefit, Incentives not yet paid are accrued systematically and rationally based an
management's estimate of each client's pefformance. These accruals are reguiarly reviewed and estimates of performance are adjusted, as
appropriate, based on changes in performance expectations, actual client performance, amendments to existing confracts or the execution of new
contracts. See Note 1 7—Commilments and Conlingencies .

Properly, equiprmant and fechrelagy. met . Property, equipment and technology are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and amortization, which are computed on a straight-line basis over the asset's estimated useful life. Depreciation and amortization of technology,
furniture, fictures and equipment are computed over estimated useful lives ranging from 2 to 7 years. Capital leases are amortized over the lease
term and leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the useful |ife of the asset ar lease term. Building improvements are depraciated
between 3 and 40 years, and buildings are depreciated over 40 years, Improvements that increase functionality of the asset are capitalized and
depreciated over the asset's remaining useful He. Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated. Fully depreciated assets are retained in
property, equipment and techmology, net, until removed from service,
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Technology Includes purchased and internally developed software, including technology assets obtained through acquisitions. Internally
developed software represents software primarily used by the VisaMet electronic payments network. Internal and external costs incurred during the
preliminary project stage are expensed as incurred. Qualifying costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized. Once the
project is substantially compiete and ready for its intended use these costs are amontized on a straight-line basis over the technoiogy's estimated
wseful life. Acquired technology assets ame initially recorded at fair value and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated wseful life.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lved assets for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumsiances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. If the sum of expected undiscounted net future
cash flows is less than the carrying amount of an assat or asset group, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset or asset group exceads its fair value. See Node 6—Froperfy, Equipment and Technolfogy, et .

Leases . The Company enters info operating and capital leases for the use of premises, software and eguipment. Rent expanse related to
ocperating lease agreements, which may or may not contain lease incentives, |s primarily recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Intangible agzets, net . The Compary records |dentifiable intangible assets at fair vaiue on the date of acqusition and evaluates the useful ke
of each asset

Finite-lived intangible assels primarily consist of customer relationships, reacquired rights, reseller relationships and trade names obtained
through sequisitions, Finite-lved intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis and are tested for recoverabilty if events or changes (n
circumstances indicate that their canrying amounts may not be recoverable, These intangibles have useful lives ranging from 2 1o 15 years, No
events of changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of Septemnber 30, 2015 | See Nole F=Intangible Assets and Gooawill |

Indefinfe-lved intangible assets consist of trade name, customer relationships and the Visa Europe franchise right acquired in the Oclober
2007 reonganization. Intangible a5sets with indefine useful lives are not amontized but are evaluated for impairment annually of mone Trequently if
events of changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may exist The Company first a$5es5es qualitative factors 1o determing whether i is
necessary 1o perfarm a quantitative impairment test for indefinite-lved Intangible assets. The Company assesses each category of indefinite-lved
intangible assels fof impairment on an aggregate tasis, which may require the allocation of cash Nows andior an estimate of fair value o the assets
of asset group. Impairment exists if the fair value of the indefinfe-lved intangible asset is ess than the carrying value. The Company relies on a
number of factars when completing impairment assessments, including a review of discounted net future cash flows, business plans and the use of
present value techniques,

The Company cempleted s annual impairment review of indefinite-lived intangitle assets as of February 1, 2015 , and concluded there was ne
impairment as of that date. No recent events or changes in circumstances indicate that impairment of the Company’s indefinite-lived intangibie
assels existed as of September 30, 2015 .

Goodwil . Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in a business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized but i evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit level annually as of February 1, or more frequeantly f events or
changes in circumstances indicate that impairment may exist,

The Company evaluated its goodwill for impairment on February 1, 2015 | and concluded there was no impairment as of that date. Mo recent
events of changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed as of Septemnber 30, 2015 |

Acorued iitgation . The Compa ny evaluates the likelinood of an unfaverable outcome in legal or regulatory proceedings to which itks a party
and records a loss contingency when it is probable that a llability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These
judgments are subjectve, based on the status of such kegal or reguiatory proceedings, the merits of the Company's defenses and consultation with
cofporate and external legal counsel. Actul autcomes of these legal and regulatory proceedings may differ
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materially from the Company's estimates. The Company expenses legal costs as incurred in professional fees in the consolicdated statements of
cperations. See Note 20—Legal Matiers

Revenue recognitiod . The Company’s operating revenuss are comprised principally of service revenues, data processing ravenues,
international ransaction revenues and other revenues, reduced by costs incurred under client incentives arrangements, The Com pany recognizes
revenue, net of sales and othes similar taxes, whan the prce s fixed or daterminable, persuasive evidence of an armangement axists, the service is
performed and collectabiity of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured.

Senice revenues consist of revenues eamed fof providing financia | institution clients with suppon services for the delivery of Visa-branded
payment preducts and solutions. Current quarter service revenues are primarily assessed using a calculation of current pricing applied to the prior
guarter's payments volumea. The Company also earns revenues from assessments designed to support ongeing acceptance and volume growth
initiatives, which are recognized in the same period the related volume is transacted.

Data processing revenues consist of revenues earmed for authorization, clearing, settlemnent, network access and other maintenance and
support services that fackiitate transaction and information processing among the Company's cients globally and with Visa Europe. Data processing
revenues are racegnized in the same period the related transactions occur or services are rendered.

International transaction revenuas are eamed for cross-border transaction processing and currency conversion activities. Cross-border
transactions anse when the country of ongin of the issuer s diferent fram that of the merchant. International ransactdn revenueas ane primarily
generated by cross-bordar payments and cash volume

Cithar revenues consist mainly of license fees for use of the Visa brand, revenues earned from Visa Europe in connection with the Visa Europe
Framework Agreement (see Nole 2—\Vise Eurcpe ), fees from account holder services, Boensing and cenification and other activites related to the
Company’s acquired entities. Other revenues also include optonal service or product enhancements, such as extended account holder prolection
and concierge Services, Other revenues are recognized in the same perod the related ransactions occur oF Services ane rendaned

Marketing. The Company expenses costs for the production of advertising as incurred. The cost of media advertising is expensed when the
advertising takes place. Sponsorship costs are recognized over the period in which the Company benefits from the sponsorship rights. Promational
items are expensed as incurted, when the related services are received, of when the related event oocurs.

Income taxes . The Company's income tax axpense consisls of two companants: current and deferrad. Current income tax expense rapresents
taxes paid or payable for the current period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized to reflect the future tax consequences attributable to
temporary differences batwaen the financial state ment carrying amounts and the respective tax basis of existing assets and liabilities, and operating
loss and credit carmyforwards. Deferrad tax assets and labilties are measured using enacted tax rates expectad to apply to taxable ncome in the
years in which those temporary differences are axpected to be recovered or settled. In assessing whether deferred tax assets are realizable,
management conssders whether it is more Bely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realired. A valuation
allowance is recorded for the portions that are not expected to be realized based on the level of histarical taxabbe income, projections of future
taxable income over the perods inwhich the temporary differences are deductible, and quarlﬁ'lng tax planning strategies.

Where interpretation of the tax law may be uncerain, the Company recognizes, measures and discloses income tax uncertainties. The
Company accounts for interest expense and penaities related to uncerain tax positions as non-operating expense in the consolidated statements of
operatons. The Company files a congolidated federal income tax refurn and, in cerain states, combingd state tax retums, The Company elects to
claim forelgn tax credits in any given year if such election is beneficial to the Company. See Nole 18—ncome Taxes .

FPension and other pasiretirement benefit plans . The Company's defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans are actuarially
evaluated, Incorpoarating vanous critical assumplions including the
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discount rate and the expected rate of return on plan assets (for qualified pension plans). The discount rate is based on a "bond duration matching”
meathadalogy, which reflects the matching of projected plan obligation cash flows to an average of high-quality corporate bond yield curves whose
duration matches the projected cash flows. The expected rate of return on pension plan assets considers the current and expected assat aliocation,
as wall as historical and expected returns on each plan asset class. Any difference between actual and expected plan exparienca, incheding asset
return experince, in excess of a 10% corridor is recognized in net periedic pansion cost over the expected average emplayes future service period,
which is approximately 8 years for plans in the United States. Other assumptions involve demographic factors such as retirement age, morality,
attrition and the rate of compensation increases, The Company evaluates assumptions annually and modifies them as appropriate.

The Company recognizes the funded status of its benefit plans in its consolidated balance sheets as ather assets, accrued liabilities and other
liabitities. The Company recognizes settement logses when it settles penzion benefit obligations, including making lump-sum cash payments to plan
participants in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits, when certain thresholds are met See Nole 10—Pension,
Postretirement and Other Benefits

Forelgn curmency remeasurement and tranalation . The Company's functional currency |s the U.S. dollar for the majority of its fareign
operations. Transactions denom inated in curmencies other than the applizable functional currency are converted 1o the functional cumency at the
exchange rate on the trangacton date, At period end, monetary assets and kabilities are remeasured to the functional currency using exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities ane remeasured at historical exchange rates. Resulting foreign currancy
transaction gains and losses related to conversion and remeasurement are recorded in general and administrative expense in the consslidated
staterments of operations and werne not material for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013

For certain foraign operations, the Company's functional cumency may be the local currency inwhich a forelgn subsidiary executes is business
transactions. Translation from the local currency to the U.S. dollar is performed for balance shaet accounts using exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date and for revenue and expense accounts using an average axchange rate for the peried. Resulting translation adjustments are
reparted as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss on the consclidated balance sheets.

Derivative financial instruments . The Company uses foreign exchange forward derivative confracts to reduce its exposure to foreign currency
rate changes on forecasted non-functional currency denominated operational cash flows, Derivatives are camied at falr value on a gross basis in
either prepaid and other cument assets or accreed liabiliies on the consolidated batance sheets. At Seplember 30, 2015, derivatives cutstanding
mature within 12 menths or less, Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of derivative instruments are accounted for either in
accumulated other compre hensive Income or loss en the consolidated balance sheets, or in the consolidated staterments of operations (in the
commespanding account where revenus or expense is hedged, or to general and administrative for hedge amounts determined to be Ineffective)
depanding on whether they are designated and quality for hedge accounting, Falr value repragents the difference inthe value of the dervative
instrurments at the contractual rate and the value at current market rates, and generally refiects the estimated amounts that the Company would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the re porting date based on broker quates for the same or similar instruments, The Company does not
enter into derivative contracts for speculative or trading purposes. See Mol 12—Derivative Financi! Insruments .

Guarantess and indemnfications . The Company recognizes an obligation at inception for guarantees and indemnifications that qualify for
recognition, regardiess of the probability of occummence. The Company indemnifies its financial institution chients for settlement losses suffered due to
the failure of any other client to fund its setlement obligations in accordance with the Visa Rules. The estimated fair value of the liability for
semement indemnification i included in accrued liabilties on the consolidated balance sheets and is described in Mote T1—Saflernen! Guaranfes
Manpagement . The Company indemnifies Visa Europe for claims arising from the Company's or Visa Eurepe's activities that are brought outside of
Visa Europe's region, as described in Nale 2—\/isa Ewrope .

Share-based compansabion . The Company recognizes share-tased compensation cost using the fair value method of accounting. The
Company recognizes compensation cost for awands with only service conditions on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is
generally the vesting period. Compensation cost for
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performance and market-condition-based awards is recognized on a graded-vesting basis. The amount is iitially estimated based on target
performance and is adjusted as appropriate based on management's best estimate throughout the performance period. See Nole T6—Share-based
Compensation .

Earnings per share | The Company calculates earmings per share using the tvo-ckiss method to reflect the different rights of each class and
senes of outstanding common stock. The dlutive effect of incremental common stock equivalents is rellected in diuted earmings per share by
application of the treasury stock method. See Nofe 15—Eamings Per Share ,

Recanlly Issved Accounling Pronouncements

In Felbruary 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASBE") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASUT) 2013-04, which provides
guidance for the recegnition, measurement and disclosure of obligations resulting from jeint and several liability arrangaments for which the fotal
amount of the obligation is fived at the reporting date. The Company adopted the standard effective October 1, 2014, The adoption did not have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In March 2013, the FASE issued ASU 2013-05, which clarifies the applicable guidance for the release of the cumuiative tranglation adjustment
inte net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its Investment in a fore ign entity, or no longer holds a controliing financial interest in a
subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business within a foreign entity. The Company adopted the standard effective October 1,
2014, The adoption did not have & material impact on the consolidated financial statameants.

InJuly 2013, the FASE Bsued ASU 201311, which provides guidance for the financial saternent presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit
when 3 net aperating loss carryfonrwand, a simitar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward exists. The Company adopted the standard effective Octobar
1, 2014, The adoption did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASE issued ASLU No. 2014-08, which requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue o which it expects i be entithed
for the transler of goods or services to customers. The ASU will replace existing revenue recognition guidance in U.5. GAAP when it becomes
effective. In August 2015, the FASB issusd ASU Mo. 2015-14, which defers the effective date of ASU No. 2014-08 by one year. The Company will
adopt the standard effective Octobear 1, 2018 The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method The
Company |3 evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-03 will have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The Company has not
yetselected a transition method and is evatuating the full effect of the standard on its ongoing financkal reporting.

In June 2014, the FASE issued ASU No. 204-12, which requires a performance target in stock compensation awards that affects vesting, and
s achievable after the requisite sarvice pariod, be treated as a performance condition. The Company will adopt the standand effective October 1,
2016, The adoption is not expectad to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

InApril 2015, the FASE igswed ASU No. 2015-03, which simplifies the presentation of debt mswance costs by requiring that debt issuance
cogts be presented in the balance sheet a3 a direct deduction from the carnrying amount of debt liabdity, congigtent with dekbt digcounts and
premiums. Subsequently, in August 2015, the FASE issued ASU Mo, 2015-15, which adds SEC staff guidance on the presentation of debt issuance
costs related to lne-of-credit arrangements, allowing for the deferal and presentation of debt Issuance costs as an asset and subsequent
ambrtization of the deferred debl issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardiess of whether there are any
outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. The Company will adopt the standards effective Cotober 1, 2016. The adoption is not
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASE issued ASU No. 2015-05, which provides guidance about a customer's accounting for fees paid in a cloud computing
arrangement The amendment will help entities evaluate whether such an arrangement incledes a software license, which should be accounted for
consistent with the acquisition of other software icenses; otherwise, it should be accounted for as a semvice contract. The Company will adapt the
standard
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effective October 1, 2016, The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements,

In September 2015, the FASE ssued ASU Mo, 2015-16, which simplifies the accounting for post-acquisition adjustments by eliminatng the
requirernent to retrospectively account for the adjustments made 1o provisianal amounts recognized in 3 business combination. The Company plang
to garly adopt this guidance on a prospective basis in the first quarter of fiscal 2016, The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the
congoldated financil statements,

Hote 2—\sa Europe
Acquisition of Visa Europe

On Movember 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Europe entered inte a transaction agreement, pursuant to which the Company and Visa Europe
agreed on the terms and conditions of the Com pany's acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Visa Europe for a total purchase price of up to €
21,2 bilisan . The purchase price consksts of: (&) at the closing of the transaction, up-front cash consideration of € 11.5 kllion and preferred stock of
the Company comvertible upon cartain conditions into class A comman stock or class A equivalent preferred stock of the Company, as described
below, valwed at approximately € 5.0 bilion , and (b} foliowing the end of sixteen fiscal quanters post-closing, contingent cash consideration of up to
€ 4.0 billion (plus up o an additional € 0.7 billion in interest), determined baged on the achievemeant of specified net revenue levels during such post-
clesing period. The board of directors of the Company and Visa Europe have each unanimously supported the transaction agreement and the
maters contemplated thereby. Closing is subject to regulatory approvals and other customary conditions, and is currently expected to ecour in the
fiscal third quarter of 20186

Transaction agreement and option amendment | The transaction agreement provides for the acquisition to be effected pursuant to the exercise
of the amended Visa Eurcpe put option, as described further below. In connection with the execution of the transaction agreement, the Company
and Wisa Europe have amended the Visa Europe put option to align the terms on which Visa Europe may exercise its rights under the put option
agraement with the terms of the transacton agreement, including the economic terms and iming The transaction agreemeant prohibits Visa Europe
from exercising the put eption prior to closing of the transaction and, if the transaction agreement is terminated without com plation of the acquisition,
the Wisa Europe put option will revert to its ariginal, unamended form. The transaction agreemant may be terminated by the Company or Visa
Europe, subject to specified exceptions, # the transaction is not consummated by August 2, 2016, or if legal restraints that prohibit the closing have
become final and nen-appealable.

Freferred stock . In conmection with the transaction, the board of directors of the Company has authorized the creation of three new seres of
preferred stock of the Company:
series A convertible participating preferred stock, par valwe 30,0001 per share, which is designed to be economically equivalent to the
Company's class A commen stock (the “class A equivalent preferred stock”);
+  series B convertible participating preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share {the "U K &1 preferred stock™); and
+  series G convertible pamicipating preferned stock, par value 500001 per share (ihe “Europe prefemed stock™).

The transaction agreement provides that, subject to the tarma and conditions thereof, at closing, the Company will issue 2,480 500 shares of
U K&l preferred stock to those of Yisa Europe's member financial institutions in the United Kingdom and Ireland that are entitled to receive
prefened stock at closing, and 3,157 000 shares of Europe prefermed stock to those of Visa Europe's other member financial institulions that are
entithed to receie preferred stock at closing. Subject to the reduction in comersion rates described below, the ULK.&] preferred stock will be
comdertibbe into a number of shares of class A common steck or class A eguivalent prefermed stock valued at approximately € 2.2 billion and the
Europe preferrad stock will be convertible into a number of shanes of class A common stock or class A equivalent preferred stock valued at
approximately € 2.8 bilson . These approximate values of the UKEI and Europe preferrad stock to be issued at closing are based on the average
price of the class A comman stock of 571.68 per share, and the euro-dollar exchange rate of 1.12750 for the 30 trading days ended October 19,
2015,

T2

190/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

VISA INC.

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—[Ceontinued)
September 30, 2015

The UK&I and Ewope preferred stock will be convertible into shares of class A commen stock or class A equivalent preferred stock, at an Initial
conversion rate of 12,952 shares of class & comman stock for each share of UK &l preferred stock and Eurcpe prefemed stock. The conversion
rates may be reduced from time 1o time to offset certain liabdities, it any, which may be incured by the Company, Visa Euwrope o their affiliates as a
result of certain existing and potential litigation relating to the setting of multilateral interchange fee rates in the Visa Europe termtory. A reduction in
thie comversion rates of the LK &I preferred stock and the Europe preferred stock have the same economic effect on eamings par share as
repurchasing the Company's class A common stock because it reduces the as-converted class A common stock share count Additbenally, the
shares of U_K_&| and Eurcpe prefermed stock will be subject to restrictions on transfer and may become convertible in stages based on
developments in the existing and poetential lisgatian. The shares of U K.&] and Europe prafarred stock will become fully convertible on the 12th
annivarsary of closing, subject only to a holdback to cover any then-pending claims. See Nofe 3—U.5 Refrospeciive Responsibiily Fian and
Potential Visa Europe Liabiities

Upon issuance of the preferred stock at closing, the holdars of the U K&l and Europe preferred stock will have no right to vote on any matters,
except for certain defined matters, including, in specified circumstances, any consolidation, merger or combination of the Company, Holders of the
clags & equivalent preferred stock, upon ISSuance at conversion, Wil have simitar voting rights to the rights of the holders of the U K. &1 and Europe
prefemed stock. With respect 1o those limited matters on which the holders of preferred stock may vate, approval by the holkders of the preferred
stock requires the atfirmative vote of the outstanding voting power of each such series of preferred stock, each such seres voling as a single class,
Onee Issued, all three senes of preferred stock will pamicipate on an as-comsaemed basis in regular quanery cash dvidends declared on the
Company's ¢lass A commen steck

UK. foss sharing agreemant and [iigation management desd | On November 2, 2015, the Company, Visa Europe and certain of Visa Europe’s
member financial nstitutions ocated in the United Kingdom {the "U K. LSA members”) entered into a loss sharing agreement (the "U K. kss sharing
agreement”), pursuant to which each of the UK. LSA members has agreed, on a several and not joint basis, o compensate the Company for certain
fosses which may be incufred by the Company, Visa Europe o their affiliates as a result of certain existing and potential litigation relating 1o the
setting and implementation of domestic multilateral interchange fee rates in the United Kingdom, subject to the lerms and conditions set forth therein
and, with respect to each UK. LSA member, up to a maximum amount of the up-front cash consideration to be received by such UK. LSA member.
The UK, LSA members’ obiigations under the U K. loss sharing agreement are condiional upan, among ather things, the acquisition closing, and
additionally upon either (2) losses valued at in excess of the sterling equivalent at closing of € 1.0 billlon having arisen in claims relating o the UK,
domestic multilateral imterchange fees (with such losses belng recoverable through reductions in the comversion rate of the UK &I preferred stock),
or () the conversion rate of the UKS preferred stock having been reduced to Zerg pursuant 1o losses arsing in claims refating to multilateral
interchange fee rate setting kn the Visa Europe territory, as described above, See Note 3=—LU 5, Refospective Responsibilty Plan and Potential Visa
Europe Liabiidles |

Prior to closing, the Company and the other panes thereto will enter into a Itgation management deed, which will st forth the agreed upon
procedures for the management of the existing and potential Bigation, a3 described above, relating to the setting and Implementation of mulilkateral
interchange fee rates in the Visa Europe territory (the "Europe covered claims®), the aBocation of losses resulling from the Europe covered claims,
and any acceleraled comversion or reduction in the conversion rate of the shares of U K &I and Europe preferred stock. Subject to the terms and
corditions set forth therein, the litigation management deed provides that the Company will generally control the conduct of the Europe covered
claims, subject to certain obligations to repart and consult with newly estabished Eurcpe litigation manageament commitiees. The Europe litigation
management committees, which will be composed of representatives of certain Visa Europe members, will also be granted consent rights to
approve certain matenial decisions in rekation to the Europe covered claims.

Historical Relationship with Visa Europe
As part of Visa's October 2007 reorganization, Visa Europe exchanged its ownership interast in Visa International and Inovant for Visa

common stock | a put-call option agreement and a Framework Agreament, a5 described below. Whike the Visa Ewope put option agreement has
bean amended by the option amendment

T3
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described above, the Visa Europe put option agreement will revert to #s onginal, unamended form If the transaction agreement is terminated without
completion of the acquisition

Viga Ewope put aplion agreament. A discussed above, on November 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Europe amended the Visa Eurape pat
option. At September 30, 2015, the fair valee of the put option Eability was based on the unamended terms.

The unamended put option agreement, if exercised, would requine Visa to purchase all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Visa
Europe Trom its members. The Company is requined to purchase the shares of Visa Europe no later than 285 days after exercise of the unamended
put option. The unamended put option agréement provides a formula for determining the purchase price of the Visa Europe sharas, which, subject
to ceftain adjustments, applies Visa Inc."s forwand price-to-earmings muliple (as defined in the unamended aptien agreement), of the PVE ratio, at the
time the wnamended option is exencised, to Visa Europe’'s adjusted net income for the forward 12-month period (as defined in the unamended option
agreement), of the adjusted sustainable income. The calculation of Visa Europe’s adjusted sustainable income under the termsz of the unamendad
put option agreement includes potentizlly material adjustiments for cost synergies and other negotiated items. Upon exercise, under the unamended
terms, the key inputs to this formuta, including Visa Europe's adjusted sustainabie income, would be the result of negotiation between the Company
and Visa Eurgpe. The unamended put option agreement provides an arbitration mechaniam inthe event that the two paries are unable to agree on
the ulimate purchase price,

The fair value of the unamended put option represents the value of Visa Eurape’s option under @3 uramended terms, which, under certain
corditions, could oblgate the Company to purchase its member equity Interest for an amount above fair value. The fair value of the unamended put
option does not represent the actual purchase price that the Company may be required to pay if the unamended option is exercised, Given curment
ECONGMIE condions, the purchase price undel the unamended terms of the put option would likely be in excess of §15 billon . Whiks the
unamended put option is in fact non-transferable, its Tair value represents the Company’s estimate of the amount the Company would Be required to
pay a third-party market paricipant to transfer the potential cbiigation in an orderly transaction:

The fair value of the unamended put option is compated by comparing the estimated strike price, under the terms of the unamended put option
agreement. to the estimated fair value of Visa Europe. The fair valee of Visa Europe is defined as the estimated amount a third-party market
participant might pay in an arm's-length ransaction under narmal business conditions. A proba billy of exercise assumplion is applied to reflect the
possibility that Visa Europe may never exercise its option in its unamended form,

The estimated fair value of the unamended put option represents a Level 3 accounting estimate due to a lack of trading in active markets and a
lack of observable inputs in measuring fair value, See Note 4—Fai Valve Measurements and fnvestments . The valuation of the unamended put
option therefora requires substantial judgmeant. The most subjective of estimates applied in valuing the unamended put option are the assumed
probability that Visa Europe will elect to exercise its option in its unamended form, and the estimated differential between the F/E ratiec and the P/E
ratio applicable fo Visa Europe on a standalone basis at the time of exercise, which the Company refers to as the "P/E differential.”

Exercise of the unamended put aption is at the sole discretion of Viaa Europe {on behalf of the Visa Eurcpe shareholdars pursuant to authority
granted o Visa Europe, including under its Articles of Association). The Company estimates the assumed probability of exercise based on the
unamernded terms of the put option agreement and other reasonably available information including, but not limited 1o (i) Visa Ewope's stated
intentions (if any) o exencise the put option in &5 unamended form; (i) evaluation of market conditions, including the regulatory emvironment, that
could impact the potential future profitability of Visa Europe; and (i) other qualitathie factors including, but not limited 10, qualtative factors related o
Viga Ewrope’s [argest members, which could indicate a change in their need o desire to liquidate their imdestment holdings. Factors impacting the
assumed PIE differential used in the calculaton inclede material changes in the P/E ratie of Visa and those of a group of comparablke companies
used to estimabe the forward price-to-eamings multipée applicable to Visa Europe.

The Company determined the fair value of the unamended put option to be approximately 5255 million at Septernber 30, 2015 and $145 million
at September 30, 2014 . The increase in value was primarily driven by an
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increase in estimated Visa Europe adpsted sustainable income partially offset by a decrease in the P/E differential. In determining the falr value of
the unamended put option on these dates, the Company assumed a 40% probabiity of exercise by Visa Europe at some point in the future and an
estimated long-term P/E differential at the fme of exercise of 1.5 x and 1.9 x, respectively. Changes in the fair value of the put option are recorded
as non-cash, non-operating expense in the Company's consolidated statements of oparations.

At Seplember 30, 2015, the unamended put option was exercisable at any time at the sole discretion of Visa Europe. As such, the unamernded
put cption llability is included in accrued liabiities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2015 | Classification in current
liabilities reflects the fact that the obligation resulting from the exercise of the instrument could become payable within 12 months at September 30,
2015

Visa call option agreement. Visa Eunape granted to Visa a perpetual call option under which the Company may be entitied to purchase all of
the share capital of Viga Eurcpe. The Company may exercise the call gption In the event of certain triggering events. These triggering events invale
the performance of Visa Europe measured as an unremediated decling in the number of merchants or ATM'S in the Visa Europe reglon that accepts
Visa-Dranded products. The Company believes the ikelihood of these events oocurming is remate

The Framework Agreement. Sulject to the binding documents entered into In connection with the preposed transaction, the retatonship
betwesn Visa and Visa Europe is governed by a Framework Agréement, which provides for trademark and technology licenses and bilateral
services as deseribed below

The Company granted to Visa Europe exclusive, irrevocabie and perpetual licenses to use the Visa trademarks and technology intellectual
property ewned by the Company and certain affiliates within the Visa Eurepe region for use in the field of financial services, payments, related
information technolegy and information processing services and parficipation in the Visa system. Visa Europe may sublicense the Visa trademarks
and technology intellectual property to its members and other sublicensees under agreed-upon circumstances.

The base fee for these imévocable and perpetual licenses is recorded in other revenues and was approximately $143 million per year for fiscal
2015, 2014 and 2013 . This fee is eligible for adjustment annually based on the annual growth of the gross domestic preduct of the Eurapean
Union, althcugh the adjustment can never reduce the annual fee below 5143 million . The Company determined through an analysis of the fee rates
Implied by the economics of the agreement that the base fee, as adjusted in future periods based on the growth of the gross domestic product of the
European Union, approximates fair value,

In addition 1 the licenses, Visa provides Visa Europe with authonzation, clearing and seftlement services for cross-border transactions
Imvetving Visa Europe’s region and the restof the world, Visa Europe must comply with certain agreed-upon global rules governing the
interoperablity of Visa's systems with the systems of Visa Evrope 28 well 25 the use and interoperability of the Visa trademarks. The parties will also
guarantee the obligations of their respective clients and members to settle transactions, manage cartain relationships with sponsors, clients and
merchants, and comply with rules relating to the operation of the Visa enterprise. Under the Framewark Agreament, the l':-ﬂl'l'll.'@l'l'p' Indemnidfies Visa
Europe Tor claims arsing from the Company's or Visa Europe's activites that are brought outside of Visa Europe’s region; and Visa Europe likewise
indemnifies the Company for such claims brought within Visa Europe’s region. However, Visa Europe has informed us of its view that it is not
obligated to indemnify the Company ar Visa International for any claim relating to the European Competition Froceedings, including claims asserted
in both the European Commission matter and the UK. Merchant Litigation. The Company continues to firmly believe that Visa Europe is obligated to
indemnify the Company for all such claims. See Note 20—Legal Matters .

The Company has not recorded labilities associated with these obligations as the fair value of such obligations was determined fo be
Ingignificant at September 30, 2015 and 2014 | respectively. The Company has determined that the value of services exchanged as a result of these
various agreements approximates fair value at September 20, 2015 and 2014 | regpactively
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Mote 3—U.5. Retrespective Responsibllity Plan and Potentlal Visa Europe Liabllitles
UL.E. Retrespective Responsibilily Plan

The Company has established several related mechanisms designed to address potential liability under certain Etigation referred to as the
U8 covered litigatian.® These mechanisms are included in and referred to as the US. retrospective responsibility plan, or the plan, and consist of a
litigation ascrow agreement, the conversion feature of the Company's shares of class B commoan stock, the indem nification obligations of the Visa
U.5.A members, an interchange judgment sharing agreemeant, a loss sharing agreament, and an omnibus agreament, as amended

U.5. covered litigation consists of:

= the Discover Ligabon . Discover Financial Services Inc, v. Visa US.A Inc., Case Mo, 04-CV-0T344 (5.0 M.Y) (settied);

«  the American Express Liigation . American Express Travel Related Services Co., Inc, v. Visa U.S A Inc, et al, No. 04-CV-0887
(S.0.MN.Y.), which the Company refers to as the American Express litgation (settied);

+  the Alrfdge Litigation | Attridge v, Visa US.A, Inc, etal, Case No, CGC-04-436920 (Cal, Super }dismissed with prejudice);

= the interchange Mulidistrict Litigation . In re Payment Card Interchange Fee and Merchant Discount Antitrust Litigation, 1.05-mg-01720-
JGE-JO(E.DNY. Jor MOL 1720, including 21l cases currently included in MOL 1720, any other case that includes claims for damages
relating o the period prior to the Company's IPD that has been or is fransferred for coordinated or consolidated pre-trial proceedings at
any time to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on MuRidistrict Litigation or otherwise included at any time in MDL 1720 by order of any court
of competent jurisdiction and Kendall v. Visa USA_ Inc. etal, Case No. CO4-4276 JSW (N.D. Cal},

= any claim that challenges the rearganization or the consummation thereof, provided that such claim is transferred for coordinated or
consolidated pre-trial proceedings at any time to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict LRigation or otherwise included at any
time in MOL 1720 by order of any court of competent jurisdiction; and

= @ny case brouwght after October 22, 2015, by an opt out of the Rule 23{b)3) Settlement Class in MDL 17 20 that arises out of facts or
circumstances substantially similar to those alleged in MDL 1720 and that is not transferred to or otherwise included in MDL 1720,

Litigation ezcrow egreement |n accordance with the liigation escrow agreement, the Company maintains an escrow account, from which
monetary liabilities from setements of, or judgments in, the U 5. covered |itigation are paid. The amount of the escrow is determined by the board of
directors and the Company's litigation committee, all members of which are affiliated with, or act for, certain Visa U.8 A members. The escrow funds
are haid in money market investments along with the interest earned, less applicable taxes, and are clazsified as restricted cash on the consoligated
bBalance sheats.

The following table sets forth the changes in the liigation escrow account:

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
(in millions)

Balance at October 1 5 1488 3 49
Retum of takedown payments from seftlement fund into the Iitigation escrow account — 1,086
Deposits into the litigation escrow accournt - 450
Payments o opt-out mercharnts [ [426) (57)

Balance at September 30 5 1072 3 1,498

" These payments are associated with the interchange muRidistrict litigation. See Note 20—Legal Matfers .

An accrual for the U.S. covered litigation and a change to the Ftigation provision are recorded when loss is deemed to be probable and
reasonably estimabée. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available
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information, Including but not limited to recommendations made by the Ifigation committee. The accrual related to the U.S, covered litigation could
be either higher or lower than the litigation escrow account balance, The Company did nat recard an additional acerual for the U5, covered Migation
during fiscal 2015. See Note 20—Legal Matters .

Conversion feature, Under the terms of the plan, when the Company funds the litigation escrow account, the shares of class B common stock
are subject to dilution through an adjustrent to the conversian rate of the shares of class B common stock to shares of ¢lass A commaon stock. This
has the same economic effect on earmnings per share as repurchasing the Company’s class A common stock, bacause it reduces the class B
comversion rate and consequently the as-converted class A common stock share count See Nole 14—Slockholders’ Equily .

Indemnrficabion obiigatons . To the extent that amounts available under the [itigation escrow arrange ment and other agreements in the plan
are insufficient to fully resaive the U.S. covered [Rigation, the Company will use commercially reasonable eMorts to enforce the indemnification
obiigations of Visa U5 A 's members for such excess amount, including but not limited toe enforcing indemnification obligations purswant to Visa
U5 A 's certificate of incorporation and bylaws and in accordance with their memibership agreements.

Interchange judgrment sharing agreement. Viisa U.S A_and Visa International have entered inte an interchange judgment sharing agreement
with certain Visa U.5.A. méembers that have bean named as defendants in the interchange muttidistrict itigation, which is described in Nole 20—
Legal Matlers . Under this judgment sharing agreement, Visa U, 5 A, members that are signatories will pay their membership proportion of the
amount of a final judgment net allscated to the conduct of MasterCard

Loss sharing agreement. Visa has entered into a loss sharing agreement with Visa U5 A | Visa International and cerain Visa U.5.A. members
The loss sharing agreement provides for the indemndication of Visa LL3.A,, Visa International and, in cenain circumstances, Visa with respect to;
(i} the amount of a Tinal judgment paid by Visa U.S A, or Visa International In the U.3. covered litigation after the operation of the interchange
judgment sharing agreement, plus any amounts reimbursable to the interchange judgment shanng agreement signatones; of (i) the damages
portion of a settlement of a LS. covered litigation that is approved as requingd under Visa US.A s cenificate of incorparation by the vate of Visa
U.5.A's specilied voting members. The several obgation of each bank that is a party to the loss sharing agreement will equal the amount of any
final judgment enforceabie against Visa U.S.A., Visa International or any other signatosy to the interchangs judgment sharing agreement, of the
amount of any approved settlement of a U.S. covered litgation, multipled by such Bank's then-cuirent membership proportion as calcubated in
accordance with Visa U.S.A's certificate of mcorporation.

On October 22, 2015, Visa entered into an amendment to the loss sharing agreement. The amendment includes within the scope of LS.
covered [tigation any action brought afer the amendment by an opt out from the Rule 23(b)(3) Settlement Class in MDL 1720 that arises out of facts
or crcumstances substantiakly similar to those alleged in MDL 1720 and that is not transferred to or otherwise included in MOL 1720. Cn the same
date, Visa entered into amendments to the interchange judgment sharing agreement and omnibus agreement that include any such action within the
scope of those agreements as well

Omnibus agreement Visa enterad inte an omnibus agreament with MasterCard and certain Visa U5 A members that confirmed and
memuarialized the signatories’ intentions with respect to the loss sharing agreement, the interchange judgment sharing agreement and other
agreements relating to the interchange multidistrict Itigation, see Mote 20—Legal Matiers . Under the omnibus agreement, the monetary portion of
any settdement of the Iinterchange multidistrict litigation covered by the omnibus agreement would be divided into a MasterCard portion at 33.3333%
and a Visa portion at 65.6567% . In addition, the monetary portion of any judgment assigned to Visa-related claims in accordance with the emnibus
agreement would be treated ag 3 Visa portion. Visa would have no kabdity for the monetary portion of any judgment assigned to MastenCard-related
claims in accordance with the omnibus agreement, and & a judgment is not assigned to Visa-retated claims or MasterCard-related claims in
accordance with the omnibus agreement, then any monetary Rbility would be divided into a MasterCand portion at 33.3333% and a Visa portion at
BE.BEETM . The Visa portion of a setiement of judgment covered by the omnibus agreement would be allocated in accordance with specified
provisions of the Company's U.5. retrospective responsibility plan, The litigation provision on the consclidated statements of cperations is not
impacted by the execution of the omnibus agreement
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On August 26, 2014, Visa entered Into an amendment to the omnibus agreement The omnibus amendment makes applicable to certaln
settlernents in apt-out cases in the interchange m ultidistrict itigation the settlement-sharing provisions of the omnibus agreement, pursuant o which
the manetary portion of any setlement of the interchange multidistrict litigation covared by the omnibus agreemeant would be divided into a
MasterCard portion at 33.3333% and a Visa portion at 66 6667% . The omnibus amendment also provides that in the event of tarmination of the
class Settlement Agreement, Visa and MasterCard would make mutually acceptable arrangements 5o that Visa shall have received two-thirds and
MastarCard shall have received one-third of the total of (i) the sums paid to defendants as a result of the termination of the Setfléement Agreement
and (i) the takedown payments previcusly made to defendants

Potential Visa Europe Liahilities

Cn Movember 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Europe entered into a transaction agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to acguire
Viga Ewrope. Closing of the acquigition is subject to various conditions including regulatory approvals, and iz expected to occur in the fiscal third
quarter of 2016. Visa Inc., Visa Europe or their affiiates are, or may become, a party fo cerain existing and potential lithgation relating to the setting
of multiateral imterchange fee rates in the Visa Europe territory, The background to the existing proceedings is within Ewopean Competition
FProcesdings and UK, Marchant Litigation in Note 20—Legal Malters . The Company hag obtained centaln protection in respect of losses resulting
from existing and potential iigation through the preferred stock and the UK, logs sharing agreement, and has agreed 1o certain terms regarding the
conduct of such Figation, all of which is conditicned on the closing of the acquisition of Visa Europe by the Company. See Nole 2—\isa Europe .
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The Company measures certain assefs and liabilities at fair value. See Node 1—Summary of Significant Accouniing Policles .
Aszsels and Liabiites Measured at Fair Value on & Recurming Basis

Assets
Cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Money market funds
U.5. government-sponsored debt securities
Commercial paper
Investment securithes, trading:
Equity securities
Investimeant securithes, avallable-for-sale;
U5 government-sponsored debt securities
WS, Treasury Securites
Equity securities
Corparate debt secunties
Auction rate secunties
Prepaid and other current assels:
Foreign exchange derivative instrurnents
Total
Liabilitles
Accrued llabllitles:
Visa Europe put option
Fareign exchange dervative instruments
Total

Faar Valise Moasinarmasnls al Septembes 30

oOoOooodn

Usdrglnptﬁiﬂmﬁdumdn
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Lewel 3
2015 04 s 2014 2015 2014
(i milions)
§ 3081 5 2277
5 280 3% —
— ar
B8 =]
2,615 2162
2,668 2176
4 58
533 522
7 T
TE 40
$ 5TIT & 4530 8§ 3504 % 2,781 T 7
255 145
5 13 3 &
$ = % — ¥ 13 5 & 255 145

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 asgets dunng fiscal 2015

Leve! 1 assels measured af far value on a8 recurming basis. Money market funds, publicly-traded equity securities and U5 Treasury securities
are classified as Level 1within the Tair value hierarchy, as fair value is based on guoted prices in active markets,

Level 2 assels and labilites measured at far valve on 8 recuming bagis, The fair value of U S, government-sponsored debt securities and
cofporate debt securites, as provided by third-party pricing vendors, is based on quoted prices in active markets for similar, not ientical, assets.
The pricing data obfamed from outside sounces is reviewed intemally for reasonablenéss, companed against benchrmark quotes from independent
pricing sources, then confirmed o revised accordingly. Commercial paper and foreign exchange derivalive instruments are valued using mputs that
ang obsenrvable in the market of can be derived principally from or commoborated by obsenvable market data. There were no substantive changes to

the valuation techniques and related inputs used to measure fair value during fiscal 2015

Level 3 assels and labiives measurad at fal value on a recwrring basis. Auction rate securities are classified as Level 3 due to a lack of
trading in active markets and a lack of observable inputs in measuring fair value. Thare
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were no substantive changes to the valuation techniques and related Inputs used to measure fair value during fiscal 2015

Viza Ewrope put oplion agreement. On November 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Europe amended the Visa Europe put oplion. At
September 30, 2015 | the falr value of the put option lability was based on the unamended terma. The falr valee of the unamended put ophion was
255 million at Sepember 20, 2015 and 5145 million at Septernber 30, 2014 . Changes in fair value are recorded as non-cash, non-operating
expense in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. See Note 2—\Viga Ewope . The liabilfty is classified within Level 3 as the
assumed probability that Visa Europe will elect to exercise its aption in its unamended form, and the estimated P/E differential are among several
unobsarvable inputs used to value the unamended put option

Azsels Measired ol Far Value on & Nonrecuring Basis

Non-marketable aquity mvestments and investmants accounied for under the equily melhod . These imvestments are classified as Level 3 due
to the absence of quoted market prices, the inherant Bck of liquidity, and the fact that inputs used to measure fair value are unobservabie and
requite management's judgment. When certain events of circumstances indicate that impairment may exist, the Company revalues the investments
using varous assumptions, including the financial metrics and ratios of comparable public companies. The Company recognized 3 515 milion other-
than-temporary impaimment koss refated to these Investments during fiscal 2013 | There were no significant impairment charges incurred during fiscal
2015 and fiscal 2014 | At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | these investments totaled 545 millon and 335 milkon | respectively, These assets are
classified in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets, See Nofe S—Freparf Expenses and Other Assels

Non-fingncial assels and labiifies. Long-Eved assels such as goodwill, indefinite-lved Intangible agsets, finite-lived intangitie assets, and
property, eguipment and technology are considered non-financkal assets. The Company does not have any non-financial liatdlites measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basts. Finke-Ived Intangible assets primanly consist of customer relationships, trade names, and regeller relationships, all
of which were obtained through acquisitions. See Note T—Infangibie Assels and Goodwill .

It the Company weré required to perform a quantitative assessment for impairment 1esting of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, the
fair values would generally be estimated uging an income approach. As the assumptions employed 1o measyure thege agsets on @ NON-FECUing
bigis are based on managements judgment using intérnal and external data, these fair value determinations are clagshed as Level 3 in the Tair
value hierarehy. The Company cormpleted its annual impairment review of is indefinge-Ived intangible assets and goodwill as of February 1, 2015
and concluded that there was no impairment. No recent events of changes in circumstances indicate that impairment existed al September 30, 2015

S Nets T—Summary of Sknifcant Accounting Policis |

Cither Financral Insruments nol Measured o Far Valse

The following financal instruments are not measuned at fair value on the Company's consolidated balance sheet at September 30, 2015 | but
require disclosune of their fair values: time deposits recorded in prepaid expenses and other cutrent assets, settlemant receivable and payable, and
custormer collateral. The estimated fair value of such instruments at September 30, 2015 | approximates their carrying value due to their generally
short maturities. If measured at fair value in the financial statements, these financial instruments would be classified as Lavel 2 in the fair value
higrarchy.
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Invesiments
Trading Investmen! Securiies

Trading investrment securities include mutual fund equity securlly imestments related to vanous employee compensation and benefit plans.
Trading activly in these investments s at the direction of the Company's emplogees. These imvestments are held in trust and are not avaikabie for
the Company's opetational of quidity nesds. Interest and dividend income and changes in faif value are fecorded in non-operating ncome, and
offset in persennel expense on the consolidated statements of operations. As of September 30, 2015 and 2014 | trading investment securities
totabed 566 million and 559 millian , respectively

Avafable-for-sake investimant Securiies

The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses and fair value of available-for-zake investment securities are as follows:

September 30, 2044

Septermber 30, 2015
Arncrtied ‘Gross Unread zed Fair Reicitsed Gross Unmeahized Pt
Cost Gains Losses Walue Cost Gains Losses Walus
{iry rrdllions)
LS. government-sponsared debt
securities 3 2612 5§ 2 % - % 2615 % 2160 5 2 % - % 2162
LS. Treasury securities 2.5652 4 — 2 656 2174 2 — 2,176
Equity securities 4 _ — 4 15 43 — 58
Corporate debt securities 533 -— - 533 51 1 - 522
Auction rate securities T — — 7 7 _— _— 7
Tetal 5 H.B0B % T 5 — ¥ 5815 § 4877 8§ 48 3 — % 45925
Less current portion of availabe-
Tor-gale investment securithes (2.431) (1,910)
Long-term available-for-sale
invastment securities 5 3384 s 3015

Thee avaita ble-for-sake imvestment securties pamarily include U.S. Treasury sécurdies, U.S. government-sponsored debl secunties and
cofporate debl seourities. The Company mecognized 55 million of other-than-temparary impairment kases on available-Tor-gale equity securities
during fiscal 2015. Avaitable-for-Sake debt securites ane presented below in accordance with their stated maturities. The majority of these
Ivvestments, 53.4 billion | are classified as non-current, as they have stated maturities of more than one year from the bakance sheet date, Howewver,
these imvestments are generally available to meet short-term liquidity needs,

Amaortized Cost Fair Value
{im millions)

September 30, 2015:

Due within one year 5 2424 5 2427
Due after 1 year through 5 years 3,373 33TT
Driee after 5 years through 10 vears - -
Due after 10 years T T
Tatal § 5804 § 5811

3
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Investment Inconms

Investment Income 1§ reconded as non-operating income in the Company's consolidated statements of operations and consisted of the
falkwing!

For the Years Ended

Septomber 30,
S 2014 2013
{in miillicns)

Ivterest and dividend income on cash and investments § N s 28 § 27
Gain on ather imrestments 3 3 5
Investment securities, trading:

Unrealized (losses) gains, net (8) ] 4

Reakired gains, net 2 B 2
Imvestment securities, available-for-sale

Realized gains (losses), net i | 1 (1
Other-than-temporary impairment on investments (5) 3 {15)
Investment income $ 48 § 3 5 22
Hote 5—Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses and other currént as5ets consisted of the fallkwing:

September 30, September 30,
015 4
i rrdElianes)

Prepaid expanses and maintenance 5 a7 5 103
Income tax recelvable (See Note 19—lncome Taxes) ki a1
Foreign exchange dervative Instruments (See Nole 12—Dervalive Financia! insrurments) 78 40
Other 83 7a
Total 5 353 5 07

Other non-current assets consisted of the following:

Seplomber 30, Seplamber 30,
7015 2014
{in millions)

Mon-current income tax recaivable [ See Nole 18—Income Taxes) $ 821 % a7
Pension assets [ See Nole 10—Pension, Postrelirement and Qther Benelits) 38 164
Other investments { See Nole 4—Fak Value Measzuremenis and Investmenis) 45 35
Long-term prepaid expenses and other 57 51
Non-current deferred tax assets { See Note T0—Income Taxes) 11 3
Total $ 78 s B55
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Mote 6—Property, Equipment and Technolegy, Net
Praperty, equipment and technology, net, consisted of the following:

Saptomber 30, Saptarmbear 30,
2015 014
fim rmillicans)

Land ¥ T 3 T
Buildings and buliding improvements 803 Tav
Furniture, equipment and keasehold improvements 1,267 1,197
Construction-in-progress 120 76
Technology 2,022 1,784
Total propey, equipment and technokogy 4,283 3915

Accumulated depreciation and amortization {2,385) (2,023)
Propety, equipment and technokgy, net § 1,888 35 1,892

Technology consists of both purchased and intermnally developed softwrare. Internally developed software primarily represents software utilized
by the VisaMet electronic payments network. At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | accumulated amortization for technalogy was $1.4 billion and §1.1
bdllion , respectivaly

At September 30, 2015 | estimated future amortization sxpense on technology was as faliows:

00 and
Fiscal: 2016 24T 2013 2018 trwsraafier Total
{im millions)
Estimated future amortization expense 5 216§ 1683 3 110§ ri Y6 5 547

Depreciation and amertization expense related to property, equipment and technology was 2431 milllon | $369 millon and 5228 million for
fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 | respectively. Inclsded in those amounts was amortization expense on technology of S251 million | 5198 million and
5173 million for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 | respectively.

Hote T—Intangible Assets and Goodwill

At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | the Com pany's indefinbe-lived intangible assets consisted of customer relationships of 56.8 billion |, Visa
trade name of 32,5 billon and a Visa Ewtope franchise night of 51.5 billion | all of which werne acquired as part of the Company's Octaber 2007
rearganization. Customer relationships represent the value of relationships with clients outside of the United States, exclding the Eurcpean Union,
Trade names represent the value of the Visa brand outside of the United States, excluding the Eurepean Union. Visa Europe's Tranchise right
represents the value of the right to franchise the use of the Visa brand, use of Visa technology and access to the everall Visa netwark in the
European Union,
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Indefinite-lved and finite-lhved intangible assets consisied of the following:

Seplambed 30, 2015 Sepleiiber 30, 2014
Accurradated Accurmulated
Gross Amortization Met Gross Amortization Met
[ iBions)

Finite-ived intangible assats:

Customer relationships s 351 § (198) S 155 § 319 3§ (1682} 5 177

Trade names 152 (67) 125 182 {54} 138

Reseiler relationships 95 (59) 36 95 (48} 47

Caher 83 {17} 35 52 {12} 40
Total finite-lived intangible assets 5 881 8 (338) S L BTE S5 {(276) S 402
Indefinite-lved intangible assets 11,008 11,008
Total intangitie assets, net s 11,361 5 11411

Amortization expense retated to finite-lved intangible assets was 353 milkan , 366 million and S69 milon for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. At September 30, 2015 | estimated future amortization expense on finite-lived intangible assets is as follows:

2020 and
Fiscal: 2046 2047 2018 bl thereafter Total
(i millians)
Estimated future amortization expense 5 5 5 49 5 43 % 43 5 166 3§ 352

There was no impairment related to the Company's indefinite-lIved or finite-lived intangibke assets during fiscal 2015 , 2014 or 2013 .

In August 2014, the Company entered into a license agreament with one of 5 strategic partners, in which it previously held a minority interest
The transaction was accounted for as a business combination. Total consideration under the kcense agneement was approximately 515 million | of
which 512 million was recorded as goodwill. Subsequently, in April 2015, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of the strategic
partner. The total purchase consideration was approximately 5116 milion , exciuding the Company’s previously held minority interest, paid primarily
with cash on hand Total purchase consideration was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired, and to liabilities assumed
based on their respective fair value on the acquisition date. Related finite-lived intangible assets recorded, comprised primarily of customer
relationships, totated 512 milion with a weighted-average usetul Iife of 6.7 years. Goodwill of 372 millixn was recorded to reflect the excess
purchase considerabon over net assets acquined.

In April 2014, the Company acquired a business inwhich it previously held a minarty interest Total purchase consideration was approximately
2170 milbion , pald primarily with cash on hand, Total purchase consideration was allocated to the tanginle and ientifiable intangible assets and
liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values on the acquisition date. Related indefinite-lived intangible assets recorded totaled 5126
milion - Goodwill of S60 milion was recordad to reflect the excess purchase consideration over net assets assumed

The consolidated financial statements include the operating results of the acquired businesses from the dates of acquisition, Pro forma
information related o the acquisitions have not been presented as the impacts are net material to the Company's financial results
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Mote 8—Accrued and Other Liabllities
Accrued liabilites consisted of the following:

m:mr 0, mﬁr 30,
{in millions)
Accrued operating expenses $ 237 3 199
‘Visa Europe put option (See Mofe 2—Visa Europe )1 255 145
Deferred revenue 81 &2
Accrued marketing and product expenses 20 "
Accrued income taxes (See Nole T8—Income Taxes ) TG T3
Other 200 114
Total 5 B6E 3 624
Other nom-current liakilites consisted of the following
September 30, September 30,
015 2014
{in millions)
Accrued income taxes (See Nole T18—income Taxes | § 762 5 B55
Empiloyes benafits 7 92
Other 68 58
Total -] 897 3 1,005

" On Movember 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Europe amended the Visa Europe put option. At September 20, 2015, the fair value of the put
option kabidity was based cn the unamended terms, and the unamended put option was exercisable at any time at the sole discretion of Visa
Europe with payment required 285 days thereafter, Classification in current liabilites reflects the fact that the obligation resulting from the
exercize of the unamended instrument could become pavable within 12 montha at September 20, 2015 . The falr value of the unamendad put
option does not represent the actual purchase price that the Company may be reguired to pay # the option is exercised in 83 unamendad form,
which would kely De in excess of 315 billion , During fiscal 2015, we recorded an incréase of 5110 miltion in the fair value of the unamendead put
option. See Nole 2—\isa Europe .

I The decréase in non-current accrued income taxes is primarily refated 1o decreases in [biltes for uncenain tax positons

Hote 8—Debt

Commercial paper program. Visa maintains a commercial paper program o support its working capital requirements and for other general
corparate purpeses, Under the program, the Company i3 authorized to issue up to 53.0 bilion in outstanding notes, with maturities up to 397 days
from the date of issuance. The Company had no outstanding obligations under the program at September 30, 2015

Credit faciity. On January 28, 2015 | the Company entered info an unsecured $3.0 bilion revolving credit facility {the “Credit Facility”). The
Credit Facility, which expires on January 27, 2016 , replaced the Company's previous $3.0 billion credi facility, which terminated on January 28,
2015 _ The Credit Faciity contains coverants and events of default customary for facllities of this type. The participating lenders in the Credit Facility
include affiliates of certain holders of the Company's class B and class © commen stock and some of the Company's clients or affiliates of is clients,
Thig facility i3 maintained to provide liquidity in the event of settlement fallures by the Company’s clients, to back up the commercial paper program
and for general corporate purposes.

Interest on Dorrowings under the Credit Fa':llll‘ﬁl' wiould be charged at the London Interbank Offered Rate or an alternative bage rate, in each
case plus applicable marging that fMuctuate based on the applicable credit rating of the Company's senlor unsecured long-term debt Visa also
agraed to pay a commitment fee, which will fluctuate based
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on the credit rating of the Company's senhr unsecured long-term debt, Curently, the applicable margin is 0.00% to 0.75% depending on the type of
the koan, and the commitment fee is 0.07% . There werne no borrowings under either facility and the Company was in compliance with all related
covanants dufing the year ended and as of September 30, 2015 .

Mote 10—Penslon, Postretirement and Other Benafits

The Company Sponsors various qualifed and non-gualified defined benafit pension and other postretiremant benafit plans that provide for
retirement and medical benefits for substantially all employees residing in the United States. The Company alse sponsors other pension benefit
plans that provide benefits for internationally-based employees at certain non-U. 3. locations, which are not presented below as they are not
maternial. The Company uses a Septernber 30 measurement date for its pension and other postretirement benefit pians

Defined beneiit pansion plans. The benefits under the current defined benefit pension plan are eamed based on a cash balance formula. An
employes’s cash bakance account is credited with an amouwnt equal to 6% of eligible compensation plus interest based on 30-year Treéasury
securities. The funding policy i 1o contibute annually no less than the minimum required contribution under ERISA

Posztretirament benefifs plan, The postretirement benefits plan provides medical benefits for retirees and dependents who meet minimum age and
senvice requirements. Benefits are provided from retirement date until age &5 . Retirees must contribute on 8 monthly basis for the same coverage
that iz generally available to active employees and their dependents. The Company’s contributions are funded on a current basis,

Fummary of Plan Activiies

Change in Benefit Obligation:

Cthr
Pansion Banefis Postratirement Benaliis
Soptember 30, Sopternber 30,
25 2014 2015 014
(i mellbons)
Benefit obligation—beginning of fiscal year $ 983 5 897 8 0 5 25
Senice cost a7 46 —_ s
Interest cost 40 42 1 1
Actuaral loss (gain) 40 B4 — (2)
Benefit payments (105) (83) (2) (4)
Plan amendment -_ {3) — —
Berefit obligation—end of fiscal year § 1,005 3 983 % 1% 3 20
Accumuiated benefit obligation § 984 3 77 NA& A
Change In Plan Assets:
Fair value of plan assets—beginning of fiscal year $§ 1117 3 1055 § - 3 -
Actual return on plan assets (€] 135 - -
Company contribution 18 10 3 4
Benefit payments (105} 183) 3] (4
Fair value of plan assets—end of fiscal year $§ 1022 3 11T 3 - 3 -_
Funded status at end of fiscal vear 5 17 5 134 % (1) = (20
Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Nan-current asset ¥ 38 3 164 3§ —_ 3 —
Current kability )] {7} (3) (3)
Mor-current liability (10} (23) (15} (17)
Funded status at end of fiscal year 5 17 5 134 § (18} 3 (207
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Amounts recognized in aceumulated other camprehensive income before tax:

Other
Permion Banefits Postretirermsnt Benalis
September 340, Septemieer 30,
2015 ;14 2015 14
{in millions}
Met actusrial loss (gain) § 232 3 121 % B s ()
Prigr service credit )] {16) 15) (2)
Total $ 23 5 105 % (10} 5 (15)

Amounts from accumulated other comprehensive Income 1o be amortized Into net periodic benefit cost in fiscal 2016,

Oithvar
Postretirement
Ponsion Banefits Barmiits
(i millions)
Actuanal loss (gain) £ 4§ (1)
Pricr service credit (71 (3)
Total £ T % (4)
Benefit cbligations In excess of plan assets related to the Company's nen-qualified plan;
Pansion Benefis
September 30,
A5 4
(ir rmilliomes)
Accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets
Accumulated benefit obligation—end of year § {ig) 3 {30)
Fair value of plan assets—end of year 5 - % —
Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assels
Benefit obligation—end of year $ (1) 3 {20)
Fair value of plan assets—end of year 5 - § -
ar
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Net periedic pension and ather postretirement plan cost:

Cither
Ponsion Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Fiscal
205 2014 2013 2015 2014 013
fin rillions)

Senice cost § 47 $ 46 3 43 5§ - 5 — 3 —_
Irvbere st Cost 40 42 35 1 1 1
Expectad return on assets (72) 158) (61) — = =
Amortization of

Prior service credit ] (8) {9 (£]] (3} (3)
Actuarial loss (gain) 1 1 28 2) (1) {1}
Met benefit cost $ 8 5 13 % 3B § @ 5 2 5 3
Curtailment gain = (3 — = — =
Settement loss 7 3 - — — s
Total nat periodic benefit cost $ 1B £ 13 & 3B §F @ 5 (3 T (3

Other changes In plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income:

Cither
Parvsion Banafits Postratirement Banafits
i 2044 HH5 24
{im millions)
Current year actuarial loss (gain) 5 118 35 8 % i 2)
Amortization of achuarkal (loss) gain i (4 2 1
CUMBHL yEar prior Service credi - (3) - =
Amortization of prior service credit 7 1 3 3
Total recognized in other comprehensive iIncome ¥ 118 5 228 § % 2
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive income 1 134 5 L 1 5 (1
Welghted Average Actuarial Assumptions:
Fiacal
2015 014 2013
Discount rate for benefit obligation: ©!
Pension 4,339 4.27% 4.51%
Postratinement TAT% 2.55% 2.T6%
Discount rate for net peniodic benefit cost
Pension 4.2T% 4.81% 3.85%
Postretirement 2.58% 2.76% 221%
Expected bng-term rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% T.00%
Rate of increase in compansation lavels for:
Benefit abligation 4.00% 4.00% 4.50%
Met periodic benefit cost 4.00% 4.50% 4.50%
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" Based on a "bond duration matching” methodology, which reflects the matching of projected plan llabllity cash flows to an average of high-guality
corparate bond yield curves whose duration matches the projected cash flows,

1% Primarily based on the targeted allscation, and avaluated for reasonablenass by considering such factors as: (i) actual return on plan assels,
(i} historical rates of return on variows asset classes in the portfolio; (i) projections of returns on various asset classes; and (iv) current and
prospective capital market conditions and economic forecasts.

The assumed annual rate of future increases in health benefits for the other postretirement benefits plan is 8% for fiscal 2016 . The rate is
assumed to decrease to 5% by 2021 and remain at that level thereafter. These trend rates reflact management's expectations of futwre rates.
Increasing or decreasing the healthcare cost trend by 1% would change the postretirement plan benefit obligation by less than $1 million

Pansion Plan Assals

Pansion plan assats are managed with a long-term parspective to ensure that there is an adequate level of assats to support benafit paymants
to participants over the life of the pension plan. Pension plan assets are managed by extemal investment managers. Investment manager
performance is measured against benchmarks for each asset class on a quarterly basis. An independent consultant assists managemeant with
investment manager selections and performance evaluations.

Pension plan assets are broadly diversified to maintain a prudent level of risk and to provide adeguate liquidity for benefit payments. The
Company generally evaluates and rebalances the pension plan assets, as appropriate, ta ensure that allocations are consistent with target allccation
ranges, The current target allocation for pension plan assets is as foliows: equity securities of 50% to 80% | fived income securiies of 26% to 35%
and other, primanily consisting of cash equivalents to meet near term expected benefit payments and expenses, of up to 79% . Al September 30,
2015 | pension plan asset allocations for the above categories wene 56% . 33% and 1% , respectively, which were within target allocation ranges.

The foliowing table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the pension plan's investments at fair value as of September 30, 2015
and 2014 | including the impact of unssttled transactions:

Fair Valus Measiraemenis o Ssplamber 20,

Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2015 014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(in millions)
Cash equivalents 3 11 5 22 $ 1 § 22
Corporate debl securities § 168 5 144 169 144
LS. government-sponsored debt securities B8 106 B8 106
U8 Treasury securitiag " T4 53 T4 53
Asset-backed securities F ¥ 5 25 M 25
Equity securites BT T&T &7 T6T
Total $ 756 5 B42 % 236 5 250 % M 5 25 0§ 102 35 117

LS. Treasury securities are Level 1 assets, bul were previously presented in aggregate with U S. govemment-sponsored debt securities as
Level 2 The Company now piesents U S Treasury securities separately for disclosure purposes. There were no changes to the valuation
techniques or related inputs wsed to measure fair value. Prior period amounts reflect the change in presentation.

Lewve! T assels. Cash egquivalents (money market funds), U.5. Treasury securibes and equity securities are classified as Level 1 within the fair
value hierarchy, as fair value is based on quoted prices in active markets.
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Level 2 assets. The fair values of U.S. government-sponsored and corporate debt securities are based on quoted prices In active markets for
similar assets as provided by third-party pricing verdors. This pricing data is reviewed internally for reasonableness through comparisons with
penchmark quotes from independent third-party sources. Based on this review, the valuation is confirmed or revised accardingly.

Level 7 assels, Asset-backed securities are bonds that are backed by various types of assets and primarily consist of morgage-backed
securities. Asset-backed securities are classitied s Level 3 due to @ lack of observable inputs in measuring fair value,

Theere wing no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 assels duning fiscal 2015 or 2014 | except for the change in présentation noted above. A
separate rolk-forvard of Level 3 plan assels measured at fair value is not presented Decause activities durning Niscal 2015 and 2014 were immaterial.

Cash Flows
Okt
Persion Postretirernent
Banufits Ennafits
Agctual employer contributions (im miBlions)
2015 $ 1B 3 3
2014 g 10 = 4
Expected employer contributlens
2018 5 4 3 3
Expected benefit payments
2016 3 146 5 3
2017 % 92 5 2
2018 -1 a4 5 3
2018 3 92 % 3
2020 3 3 = 2
2021-2025 : 462 5 5
CQithvér Benaiils

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plan, er 401(k) plan, that covers substantially all of its employees residing in the United States,
Perzonnel costs included $49 milkon , $46 milion and 544 million in figeal 2015, 2014 and 2013 | regpectively, for expenses attributable to the
Company's employees under the 401(k) plan. The Company's contributions to this 401(k) plan are funded on a current basis, and the related
expenses are recognized in the pencd that the payroll expenses ane incummed.

Hote 11—Settlement Guarantee Management

Thie Company indermnifies its financial institution chents for saitlement losses suffered due to fallure of any other client to fund 25 setement
chligations in accordance with the Visa Rules. This indemnification creates settlement risk for the Company due to the difference in timing between
the date of a3 payment transaction and the date of subsequent setthement. Settiement at risk, or exposure, is estimated based on the sum of the
following inputs: (1) average daily velumes during the gquarter muliplied by the estimated number of days to settle plus a safety margin; (2) four
months of rolling average chargebacks volume; and (3) the total balance for cutstanding Visa Travelers Chegues.

The Company maintains and regularly reviews global settlement risk policies and procedures to manage setiement exposure, which may
require clients to post collateral i certain credit standards are not met.

The Company's settlement exposure is limited to the amount of unsattled Visa payment transactions at any point in time. The Company's
estimated maximum settlement exposure decreased 1o approximately $43.5 billion for
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the period ended September 30, 2015 | compared to $56.9 billion for the period ended September 30, 2014 . The decrease inthe Company's
estimated maximum setiiement exposure for the periad ended September 30, 2015 s due 1o recent changes in the Visa Rules that reduced the
number of transactions coverad by s settle ment indemnification. Of these amounts, 52 2 billion and 53 2 bilkon at Saptember 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, wera coverad by collateral. The tolal available collateral balances presentad below weare graater than the sattlemeant exposune covared
by customer collateral hald due to instances inwhich the available collateral exceeded the total setlement expasure for certain financial insttutions
at each date presented.

The Company maintained collateral as folows:

September 30, September 10,
15 2044
(i il ors)
Cash equivalents $ 1,023 & 961
Pledged securities at market value 154 148
Letters of cradit 1,178 1,242
Guarantees T | 1,554
Total § 3326 35 3,905

Cash equivalents collateral is reflected in customer collateral on the consolidated balance sheels as it is held inescrow in the Company's
mame. Al other collateral is excluded from the consolidated balance sheets. Pledged securities ane held by third parties in trust for the Company and
clignts. Letters of credit are provided primarily by client financial instiutions to serve as irrevocable guarantees of payment Guarantees are provided
primarily by parent financial institutions to secure the obligations of their subsidiaries. The Company routinely evaluates the financial viability of
institutions providing the guarantees

The fair value of the settlerment risk guarantee is estimated wsing a proprietary model which considers statistically derived loss factors based on
historical experience, estimated settlement exposures at period end and a standardized grading process for clients (using, where available, third-
party estimates of the probability of customer failure). Historically, the Company experienced minimum losses, which has contributed to an
estimated probability-weighted value of the guarantes of approximately 51 milion and 52 million at September 30, 2015 and 2014 | respectively.
These amounts were reflected in accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets

HNote 12=—=Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company maintaing a relling cash fiow hedge program with the objective of reducing exchange rate risk from forecasted net exposures of
revienues derived from and payments made in non-functional currencies during the following twelve months. The aggregate notional amounts of the
Company's dermvative contracts outstanding in its hedge program were 51.2 billion at September 30, 2015 and 2014 . As of September 20, 2015 |
thie Company's cash fiow hedges in an assel position totaled 576 million and wene classified in prepaid expenses and other currént assets on the
consolidated balince sheet, while cash fow hedges in a labiity position totaled 512 millien and wene classified in accreed liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheet These amounts are subject 1o master netling agreemaents, which provide the Company with a legal right to net settle
multiple payable and recaivable posiions with the same counterparty, in a singhe currency through a single payment. Howeaver, the Company
presents fair values on a gross basis on the congolidated balance sheets . See Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies |

To quality for cash flow hedge accounting treatment, the Company formally decuments, at inception of the hedge, all relationships betweean the
hedging transactions and the hedged items, as well as the Company's risk mamnagement objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
rransactions. The Company also formally assesses whether the derivalives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offseting
changes in the cash Niows of the hedged fems and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in fulure perods.
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The Company uses regression analysis to assess hedge effectiveness prospectively and retrespectively. The effectiveness tests are performed
on the forelgn exchange forward contracts based on changes in the spot rate of the derivative instrument compared to changes in the spot rate of
the forecasted hedged transaction. Forward paints are excluded for effectiveness testing and measurement purposes. The excluded farward points
are reported in eamings. For fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 | the amounts by which eamings were reduced refating to excieded forward points were
528 million , 327 million and 514 milion , respectively

The effective partion of changeas in the fair value of derivative contracts is recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
Income or loss on the consolidated balance sheets. When the forecasted transaction occurs and is recognized in earnings, the amount in
accumulated other compre hansive income or loss related ta that haedge is reclassified to operating revenue or expensa. The Company expects to
reclassify 5117 million pre-tax gains to earnings during fiscal 2016,

The Company's dervative financial instruments are subject to both credit and market rsk. The Company monitors the credit-warthiness of the
financial institutions that are counterparties to its dervative financial instruments and does not consider the risks of counterparty nonperformance to
be significant The Company mitigates this risk by entering inte master netting agreements which require each party fo post collateral against its net
liahility positicn with the respective counterparty, As of September 30, 2015 | the Company has received collateral of §73 million from
counterparties, which is included in accrued liabilites on the consolidated balance sheet, and posted collateral of $4 milkon | which i Included in
otfier assels. Notwithstanding the Company's efferts to manage foreign exchange risk, there can be no absolule assurance that its hedging acthties
will adequately protect against the risks assockated with forelgn currency fluctuations. Credit and market risks related to derivative instruments were
not considened significant at Septembser 20, 2015 .

Additiznal disclosures that demanstrate how derivative instruments and related hedged flems affect an entity’s financial position, financial

performance and cagh flows have not been presented because the impact of dervative ingtruments is immaterial to the overall consolidated
financial statements.

Hote 13—Enterprise-wide Disclosures and Concentration of Business

The Company's long-lived net property, equipment and technology assets are classified by major geographic areas as follows:

Seplembar 30, September 30,
HHS 2014
i il ions)
United States L3 1,806 = 1,798
Internaticnal 82 a4
Total 5 1888 3 1,682

Revenue by gecgraphic market is primarity based on the location of the issuing financial institution. Revenuves earned in the United States
were approximately 53% of total operating revenues in fiscal 2015 , and 54% in fiscal 2014 and 2013 . No individual country, other than the United
States, generated more than 10% of total operating revenues in these years,

A significant portion of Visa's operating revenues is concentrated ameng its largest clients. Loss of business from any of these clients could
have an adverse effect on the Company. The Company did not have any custemer that generated greater than 10% of its net cperating revenues in
fiscal 2015 , 2014 or 2013 .

Note 14—Stockholders’ Equity

Class A common sleck Spit In January 2015, Visa's board of directors declared a four -for-one spiit of its class A common stock. Each class A
commen stockhalder of recard at the close of business on February 13, 2015 ("Record Date”), recelved a dividend of three additiona| shares on
March 18, 2015 for every share held as of the Record Date. Trading began on a spl-adjusted basis on March 13, 2015 Holders of class Band C
commaon stoek did not receive a stock dividend. Instead, the comversion rate for class B common stock increased to 1.64832 shares
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of class A common stock per share of class B common stock, and the comversion rate for class © commen stock Increased to 4.0 shares of class A
comman stock per share of class C common stock. Immadiately following the split, the class A B and C stockholders retained the same refative
ownarship pefcantages that they had prior to the stock spit All par share amounts and number of shares outstanding in these unacdited
consoldated financial statements and accompanying notes are presented on a post-split basis. As a result of the stock split, all historical per share
data and number of shares outstanding presented have been retroactively adjusted.

As-converted class A comman stock. The number of shares of each class and the number of shares of class A common stock on an as-
comverted basis at September 30, 2015 | are as follows:

Shares Cormmrsion Rate Inte As-converted Class A
{im millions, except conversion rate) Outsianding Class A Common Stock Common Stack
Class A common Siock 1,850 = 1,950
Class B common stock 245 1.6483 Lo 405
Class C commaon stock 20 40000 T8
Total 2,434

"' Figures in the table may not recakoulate exactly due to rounding. As-corverted class A common stock is calkulated based on unrounded
numbers.

% The class B to class A common stock conversion rate is presented on a rounded basis. Conversion calculations for dividend payments are based
on @ comversion rate rounded to the tenth decimal

Reduction in as-converted class A comman sfock. The following table presents share repurchases in the ocpen market during the following
fizcal years:

(i milllans, except per share datal 2015 2014

Shares repurchagsed in the open market 44 79
Average repurchase price per share & H GE8E 3 5212
Total cost § 28910 % 4118

1 )l shares repurchased in the open market have been retired ard constitute authorized but unissued shares,
1 Figures in the table may not recalcutate exacty due to rounding. Average repurchase price per share is calculated based on unrounded
numbers,

In October 2014 | the Company’s board of directors authonzed a 550 billion share repurchase program. As of September 30, 2015 | the
program had remaining authorized funds of $2 8 biltion . All £hare repurchase programs authonized pior to October 2014 have been completed. In
Cctober 2015 , the Company's board of directors authorized an addtional $5.0 billion share repurchase program.

Under the tarms of the retrospective responsibilfy plan, when the Company makes a deposit into the Iftigation escrow account, the shares of
class B common stock are subject to dilution through an adjustment to the conversion rate of the shares of class B common stock to shares of class
A commen stock These deposits have the same economic effect on earnings per share as repurchasing the Company's class A common stock,
because it reduces the ciass B comversion rate and consequently the as-converted class A commaon stock share count. See Nofe 3—UL.5.
Reftrospective Responsibifly Flan and Patential Visa Europe LisbiNtes

The following table presents as-corverted class B common stock after deposits into the [tigation escrow account in fiscal 2014 . There were no
deposits into the litigation escrow account in fiscal 2015,
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{in millions, except per share and conversion rate data) Fiscal 2014

Deposits under the U5, retrospective responsibility plan 5 450
Effective price per share " 5 53.82
Reduction in equivalent number of shares of class A common stock, g
Conversion rate of class B common stock to class A common stock after deposits 1.6482
As-converted class B common steck after deposits 405

I Efective price per share calcutated using the volume-weighted average price of the Company's class & common stock over a pricing periad in
accordance with the Company’s current certificate of incorporatian.

Class B comman Steck, The class B commaon steck IS not convertible or transferable until the date on which all of the U.S. covered litigation
has been finally resoled, This transfer restriction is subject to Bmited exceplions, including transfers to other holders of ckass B common stock. After
termination of the restrictions, the class B common stock will be convertitde into class A common stock if transferred to a person that was not a Visa
Membear (a5 definad in the current cerificate of incorporation) or simiar person or an affiliate of a Visa Member or similar person. Upon such
transfer, each share of class B common stock will automatically convert into a number of shares of class A common stock based upen the
applicable conversion rate in effect at the time of such transfer

Adjustment of the comversion rate occurs upon: (i) the completion of any foliow-on offering of class A common stock completed to increase the
size of the litigation escrow account (o any cash deposit by the Company in lieu thereof) resulting in a further comesponding decrease in the
conversion rate; or (i) the final resolution of the U5, covered tigation and the ralease of funds remaining on deposit in the IRigation escrow acoownt
to the Company resulting in a comesponding increase in the conversion rate

Class C common stock. AS of September 30, 2015, all of the shares of class C common Stock have been released from transter restrictions,
and 132 million shares have been convened from class C o class A common stock upon thelr sale into the pubiic market

Freferred stock. Preferred stock may be |ssued as redeemable or non-redeemabie, ard it has preference over any class of common stock with
respect to the payment of dividends and distribution of the Company's assets in the event of a hquidation o disselution. The Company had no
shares of prefermed stock outstanding during and at the end of fiscal 2015 and 2014, Subsequent to Seplember 30, 2015, the board of direciors
authorized the creation of thres new series of preferted stock to be issued upon closing of the Visa Europe acquisition. Sees Nofe 2—Visa Surape

Vioding rights. Holders of class A common stock have the right to vote on all matters on which stockhalders generally are entitled to vole.
Hodders of clags B and C commaon stock have na nght to voba on any matters, except for certain defined matters, including any decision fo axit the
core payments business and, in specified circumstances, any consolidation, merger or combination of the Company, in which case the holders of
class B and C commeon steck are entitted to cast a number of vates equal to the number of shares of class B or G commen stock hekd multiplied by
the applicable conversion rate in effect on the record date.

Dwvidends declared, The Company declared and paid $1.2 billion in dhvidends in fiscal 2015 at a quarterly rate of 50.12 per share, In October
2015 | the Company's board of directors declared a guarterly cagh dividend of 30,14 per share of clags A common stock (determined in the case of

class B and class C common stock en an as-cenveried basis), which will be paid on December 1, 2015 | to all holders of record of the Company's
class A, B and C common stock as of November 13, 2015
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Mote 15—Earnings Per Share

The following table presents eamings per share for fiscal 2015 "

Basic Emmings Per Share

DHiuted Eamings Per Share

oOoOooodn

{in milliena, otapt pbr ghars duels)

Weighted. Weighted-
Income Average Hamirgs per Encome Avarage Barnings par
AL ation Shares EFaire = Alocatan Frares Bhare =
() Cuistanding (B} A NTE ) Dutstanding (B} {AME]
Class A commion S1ock 5 5,044 1954 3 288 | 8 6,328 2457 ™ § 258
Class B common stock 4 1.045 245 3 42 | % 1,042 245 3 425
Class © common Stotk 224 2 3% 0z | s 223 2 $ 10.20
Participating secunities 15 Mot presented Mot presented | 5 15 Mk pressnbed Mt pressntead
Mt incone 53 B.A28
The following table presents earmings per shate for fiscal 2014 0
Basie Eamings Par Share Biluted Earnings Pes Share
{in millions, #icept p4r share Gaia}
e ighaed- W
income Awarage Esnings per Bncome Average Barning e par
Algcaiion Hhares Bhare = Allo cation Bhares Ehare =
) Chtstanding (B) LAV Ao Drtstending (B) AR
Class A common Slock 5 4,307 1993 § 216 | & G438 2523 o 5 216
Class B common stock '+ 852 245 3 363 5 £90 245 5 362
Class © common stock = s % 5 BBS | § 2 28 s ae2
Participating secunties 17 Hot presented Mot presented | 3 16 Mot presented Mot presented
et inconme 5 5438
—
The follswing table presents earnings per share for fiscal 2013 &
Basic Enmings Per Share Diluted Earninge Puar Shars
{in milliona, 83 cepl par share Sela}
Ve ighted. Weighted.
Income Rwerags Barnings par Ingama Bverage Earninge par
AT wion Bhares Bhars = Ao cation Bhares Bhane =
A1 Crtstanding () (R (A Dutetanding (B} Al
Class A common stock 5 3959 2080 % 190 | & 4980 2624 o 5 1.90
Class B commion slock 14 Tas 245 5 320 | % TE4 245 ] 313
Class C common stock 4 218 28 5 TE1 5 215 28 s 758
Paricipating securities ) 18 Mot prosented Mot presented | S 18 Mot preserted Mot presented
Met income -3 4,930
I

1l Figures in the table may not recalculate exactly due to rounding. Eamings per share i calculated based on unrounded numbers. The number of
shares and par share amounts for the prior pericds presented have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the four -for-one stock spit effected in
the fiscal second quarter of 2015, See Note 14—Siockholders” Equity .

71 Net income attributable to Visa Inc. is allocated based on proportional swnership on an as-comverted basis, The welghted-average numbers of
shares of ag-converted class B commaon stock used in the income allocation were 405 millon for fiscal 2015 and 413 million for figcal 2014 and
2013, The welghted-average number of shares of ag-convered class C common stock used in the Income allocation was &7 milkoen , 103 milion
and 113 milion for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 | respectively.

- wWeighted-average difuted shares cutstanding are calculated on an as-converted basis, and include incremental common stock equivalents, as
calculated under the treasury stock method. The computation inchedes & million , 7 milkon and & millon common stock equivalents for fiscal 2015
L2014 and 2013 | respectively, because their effect
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wolkd have been déutive. The computation excludes 2 million of comman stock equivabents for fiscal 2015 | 2014 and 2013 because their effect
wolld have been anti-diluthve.

The outstanding number of shares of class B and C commen stock were not impacted by the stock split as these stockholders received an
adjustment to their respective conversion ratios instead of stock dividends. Ses Nole 14—Stackholders” Equiy . Weighted-average basic and
diluted shares outstanding for class B and © common stock are cakulated based on the common shares cutstanding of each respective class
rather than on an as-convertad basis,

Participating securities are unvested share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, such
a5 the Company's restricted stock awards, restricted stock unids and eamed performance-baged shares,

Hote 16—=Share-based Compensation

2007 Egulty Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company's 2007 Equity Incentive Compensation Plan, of the EIP, authorizes the compensation committee of the board of directars 1o
grant nan-qualified stock options ("options”), restricted stock awards ("RSAS™), restricted stock units ("RSUs™) and perfermance-based shares to fts
employees and non-employee directors, for up to 236 million shares of class A common stock. Shares avallable for award may be either authorized
and unigsued or previously issued shares subsegquently acquired by the Company, The EIP will continug to be in effect until all of the comman stock
avallable under the EIF ia delvered and all restrictions on those shares have lapged, unless the EIP is terminated earlier by the Company's board of
directors. No awards may be granted under the plan on or after 10 years from ks effective date,

Share-pased compensation cost 15 recorded net of estimated forfeitures on a stralght-ling basis for awards with senvice condiions only, and on
a graded-vesting basis for awards with service, performance and market conditons. The Company's estimated forfeiture rate is based on an
evaluation of historical, actual and trended forfeiture data. For fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded share-based compensation cost
of S154 millian , $172 million and $172 millon |, respectively, in personnel on iMts consolidated statements of operations. The retated tax benefis were

354 millezn , 351 millon and 353 milion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2012 | respectively. The amount of capitalized share-based compensation cost
was immatenal during fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 .

All par share amounts and number of shares outstanding presented below reflect the four -for-one stock split that was effected in the second
quarter of fiscal 2015, See Nofe T4—Siockholders” Squity .

Oplions

Options issued under the EIP expire 10 years from the date of grant and primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to
earliar vesting in full undar certain conditions,

During fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , the fair value of sach stock option was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option
pricing maodel with the following weighted-average assumptions:

215 2014 2013
Expected term (in years) ' 4.55 4,80 6.08
Risk-free rate of refum ! 1.5% 1.3% 0.8%
Expected volatility 22.0% 25.2% 29.3%
Expactad dividend yield 0.8% 0.8% 0.9%
Falr value per option granted ¥ 1204 3 11.03 3 9.76

' Beginning in fizcal 2014, assumption is based on the Company's historical option exercises and these of a set of peer companies that
managemant believes iz generally comparable te Visa, The Company's data is weighted baged on the number of years between the

measurement date and Visa's inftial public offering as a percentage of the options' contractual term, The re lative weighting placed on Visa's data
and peer data in fiscal 2015 was

L
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approximately 67% ard 33% | respectively, and the relative weighting in fiscal 2014 was 58% and 42% | respectively. In fiscal 2013, assumption
was fully based on peer companies' data.

" Based upon the zero coupon U.S. treasury bord rate over the expected term of the awards.

% Based on the Company's implied and historical volatility. The expected volatilities ranged from 21% fo 23% in fiscal 2015 . In fiscal 2013,
historical volatility was a blend of Visa's histarical volatility and those of comparable peer companies. The relative weighting beteraen Visa
histarical volatility and the historical volatility of the peer companies was based on the percentage of years Visa stock price information is
avallable since i&s initial public offering compared to the expected term.

! Based on the Company's annual dividend rate on the date of grant.

The following tabée summarizes the Company's option activity for fiscal 2015 ;

Wl ghted-
Average
Wdghtad- Rl ning Apgragate
Average Contraciual Imtrinesic
Euercise Prica Term Walue M
Opdions Par Share {in years) fin millices)
Outstanding at October 1, 2014 11,649,704 5 22 52
Granted 1,444 376 % 62.87
Forfeited (379,662) 5 50,53
Exercised (3.036,701) % 20.53
Cutstanding at September 30, 2015 9677717 5 2807 50 5402
Options exercisable at September 30, 2015 7083305 S 18.26 a7 5364
1
gpﬂons exercisable and expected to vest at September 30, 2015 0202332 § 27.26 40 $308

1" Calculated using the closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2015 of $69.66 , less the option exercise prce, muftiplied by the number
of instruments.
1% applies a forfeiture rate to envested options outstanding at September 30, 2015 to estimate the options expected to vest in the future.

Forthe options exercised during fiscal 2015 |, 2014 and 2013 , the total intringic value was 5134 million , 5187 millkon and 3176 million ,
respectively, and the tax bemefit realized was 385 million , 365 millon and 559 milion | respectively. As of September 30, 2015 | there was 517
million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average perod of
approximately 1.4 years.

Restrizled Stock Awards and Resircled Stock Units

RS4s and RSUS issued under the EIP primarily vest ratably over 3 years from the date of grant, subject to earlier vesting in full under certain
conditians

Upan vasting, the RSAs are sattled in class A common stock on a one-for-enaé tasis. During the vesting period, RSA award recipients are
eligible to receive dividends and participate in the same voting rights as those granbed to the bolders of the underlying class A common stock. Upon
westing, RSUs can be seffled in class A common stock on a one-for-one basis or in cash, of a com bination thereof, at the Company's option. The
Company does not currently intend to settle any RSUS in cash. During the vesting period, RSU award recipients are aligible to receive dividend
equivalents, but do not participate in the voting rights granted to the holders of the underlying class A comman stock,

The fair value and compensation cost before estimated forfeitures for R5As and RSUs is calculated using the closing price of class A commaon
stock en the date of grant. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSAs granted during fiscal 2015 | 2044 and 2012 was 363.71 | $459.98 and
$36.80 , respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUs granted during fiscal 2015, 2074 and 2013 was $62.83 | 549,44 and
536.55 , respectively. The total grant-date fair value of RSAs and REUS vested duting fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 was 5132 million , 3126 millen
and 598 million | respectively
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The following table summarizes the Company's RSA and RSU activity for fiscal 2045

Waighted-
Bver.
Wl ghted- R g Aggregate
Bover Contraciual Intrinsic
Grant Date Term Vadue ™
Restricted Siock Fair Valua {im years) [im millions)
Awards Unils RSA REU RSA RSU REA RS
Outstanding at October 1, 2014 5,234 184 1866932 5 4000 5 3568
Granted 2,145 439 TS3T33 5 63Y1 5 G288
Vested {2,702 580) (1.005,707) & 3550 § 3543
Forfeited (612,356) (172,436} 5 4832 S 47.86
Cutstanding at September 30, 2015 4 064 BET 1442522 § 5409 & 5380 1.5 1.4 283 $100

" Calculated by muitiplying the chosing stock price on the iast trading day of fiscal 2015 of 385,86 by the number of instrumennts,

At September 30, 2015, there was 5138 milken and 538 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to urvested RS54 and RSUSs,
respectively, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 1.5 years for RSAs and 1.4 years for RSUs

Performance-based Shares

The following table summarizes the maximum number of performance-based shares which could be eamead and related activity for fiscal 2015

Wil gt
Average
‘Wighted- Remaining Aggregate
Boverage Contractual Intrinsic
Grant Date Term Value M
Shares Faiir Vakse (iry years) i il ons )
Outstanding at October 1, 2014 2075240 S 44.32
Granted & 785884 8 6578
Vested and earned (1.221,020) 3 42 68
Unearned (24,924) 3 4268
Faorfeited (351,218) § 54.25
Cutstanding at September 30, 2015 1,263,962 3 57.61 or %88
e —————————

" Calculated by mutiplying the chasing steck price on the last rading day of fiscal 2015 of $62.66 by the number of ingtrume nts,
¥ Represents the maximum number of parformance-based shares which could be earned

Forthe Company’s perfformance-based shares, in addition 1o service conditions, the ultimate number of shanes to be eamed depends on the
achievement of both performance and market conditions. The paformance candition is based on the Company's earnings pes share target. The
market condition is based on the Company's total sharaholder return ranked againgt that of ather companies that ane included in the Standard &
Poor's 500 Index, The fair value of the performance-based shares, Incorparating the market condition, is estimated on the grant date using a Mante
Carlo simulation model, The grant-date fair value of performance-based shares granted in fiscal 2015 | 2014 and 2013 was $60.78 | $56.37 and
£41,04 per share, respectively, Eamed performance shares granted in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 vest approximately 3 years from the initial grant
date, All perfarmance awards are subject 1o earler vesting in full under certain conditions

Compensation cost for perdformance-based shares is initally estimated based on target perdormance, It 5 recorded net of estimated forfeiures

and adjusted as appropriate throughout the perfarmance period, At September 20, 2015 | there was $11 million of Wotal unrecognized compensation
cost related 1o umeshed
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performance-based shares, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 0.7 years
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In January 2015, the Company's elass A stockholders approved the Visa Ine. Employee Stoek Purchase Plan {the “ESPR), under which
substantially all employees are ehgible to participate. The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchase the Company s class A commen stock at a
15% digcount of the stock price on the purchase date, subject to cetain restrictions. A total of 20 million shares of class & common Stock have been
reserved for msuance under the ESPP, The first ofering date was April 1, 2015, The ESPP does not have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Hote 1T—Commitments and Contingencles

Commitments, The Company leases certain premises and equipment throvghout the world with warying expiration dates. The Company
Incurred total rent expense of 5136 million | $134 million and 554 millien in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 | respectively. Future minimum payments an
krages, and marketing and sponsarship agreements per fiscal year, at September 30, 2015 | are as follows:

2016 2017 18 209 0 Thereafter Total
{im rralléons)
Operating leases $ 85 5 B % 57T % 3 § M § 107 § 302
Marketing and sponsorships 112 121 121 119 110 71 654
Total § 207 % 184 § 178 § 158 § 141 % iTé §  1.048

Select sponsorship agreaments require the Company to spend certain minimum amounts for advertising and marketing promaotion ower the life
of the contract For commitments where the individual years of spend ane not specified in the contract, the Company has estimated the timing of
when these amounis will be spent. in addition to the fixed payments stated above, select sponsorship agreements require the Company to
undertake marketing, promotional or other activities up to stated monetary values to support events which the Company is spensoring. The stated
manetary value of these activities typically represents the value in the marketplace, which may be significantly higher than the actual costs incurred
by the Company.

Clhent incentives. The Company has agreaments with financial institution clients and other business parners for various programs designed to
build payments volume, increase Visa-branded card and product acceptance and win merchant routing transactions. These agreaments, with terms
ranging from one to thireen years, can provide card issuance andfor conversion support, voluma/growth targets and marketing and program support
based on specific performance requiraments. Thase agreemeants are designed to encourage client business and to increase overall Visa-brandad
payment and fransacton volume, theraby raducing per-unit fransaction processing costs and increasing brand awarenass for all Visa chents,

Payments made that quality for capitalization, and obligations incurred under these programs are reflected on the consolidated balance sheet
Client incentves are recognized primarily as a reduction to operating revenue in the period the related volumes and transactions ocour, based on
management's estimate of the client's performance in accordance with the terms of the incentive agreement. The agreements may or may not limit
the amount of cient incentive payments,

The table below sets forth the expected future reduction of revenue per fizcal year for client incentive agreements in effect at September 30,
2015

{im milfions) 2HHE 2047 218 28 2020 Thereafter Total
Cliant incentives 5 3237 % 3430 5 2BN0 % 226 % 1EI0 S 3865 §% 18R17

Thir amount of client incentives recorded as a reduction of revenue in future perods under the Company's incentive arrangements, will be
greater of less than the estimates above due to changes in performance expectations, actual client perfarmance, amendments o existing contracts
of the execution of new contracts. Based
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on these agreements, increases in Incenthve payments are generally driven by increased payment and transacton volume, and as a resull, in the
event incentve payments exceed the above estimates, such payments are not expected 1o have a materal effect on the Company's financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 18—Related Partles

Visa considers an entity to be a related party for purposes of this disclosure if that entity owns more than 10% of Visa's total voling comman
stock at the end of the fiscal year, or f an officer or employee of that entity also serves on the Company's board of directors. The Company
considers an investee to be a related party if the Company’s: () ownership interest in the investee is greater tham or equal to 10% or (i} if the
investment s accounted for under the equity method of accounting. At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | no entity owned mone than 10% of the
Company's tatal voting commen stock. There wene no significant transactions with related parties during fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013,

Note 18—Income Taxes

The Company's income bafore taxes by fiscal year consisted of the following:

205 Fktl 2013
{immiBions)
U5 ¥ T214 5 G0 3 59492
Mon-U.5. 1,781 1,584 1,265
Total income before taxes § 8005 § Y724 % 7257

LS, income bafore taxes included 52 4 billion , 2.3 billion and 52.0 billion of the Company's U5, entities' income from operations outside of
the U5 for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 | respectively.

Income tax provision by fiscal year consisted of the following:

s Pkt 2013
{im millions)
Current:
.5, federal § 1881 5§ 2383 %5 568
State and local 168 237 (52)
Maon-LI1L.5. 300 74 238
Total current taxes 2,459 2,854 749
Deferred:
U.5. federal 181 {576) 1,401
State and local 1 (31) 114
MNon-U.5. 28 29 13
Total deferred taxes 208 (578) 1.528
Total income tax provision § 26687 5 2286 § 2277
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise fo significant portions of deferred tax assets and llabilities at September 30, 2015 and
2014 are presented below!

S 2014
{iew il oS}
Deferred Tax Assets:
Accrued compensation and benelits 5 141 5 1354
Comprehensive (income) loss 51 14
Investments in joint ventures 20 14
Accrued litigation obligation 3 558
Clignt incentives 191 235
Mat operating loss carryfonvand &0 a5
Tax credits 1 4 |
Federal benefi of state taxes 203 210
Ohther 164 138
Valuation allwance (40} (34}
Deferred tax agsels 1,172 1,326
Deferred Tax Liabllities:
Property, equipment and technology, net {315) (298)
Intangible assets {3,964) {4,000)
Foreign axes {153) {125)
Other — (12}
Daterrid tax B biltie s {4,432) {4,435}
MNet deferred tax [Rbilties 5 (3,260) 5 (3,10%)

Total net defemed tax assets and liabilities are included in the Company's consolidated balance sheets as follows:

Septomber 30, Septoamiser 30,
ik 014
{in millions)
Cumrent deferred tax assels 3 871 5 1,028
Mer-current deferred tax assets ! 11 8
Current deferred tax kabities ' {18} —
MNon-current deferred tax liabilties (4,123} (4,145)
Met deferred tax labilties $ {3.260) 5 (2, 109)

1 Nen-current deferred tax assets ane reflected in other assets and current deferred tax liabilities are refiected in accrued liabilites on the
consolidated balance sheets.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is mone likely than not that all or some portion of the
deferred tax assels will not be realized. The ulimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future laxable mcome
during the paricds in which those temporary differences are deductible. The fiscal 2015 and 2014 valuation allowances relate primarily to foreign net
operating losses from subsidiaries acquired in recent years.

As of Septamber 30, 2015 | the Company had 530 milion federal, 519 milion state and 5177 millon fareign net operating loss carnfonrwards.
The federal and state net operating loss camyfonwards will expire in fiscal 2028 through 2035 . The foreign net aperating loss may be carmied forward
indefinitely. Tha Company axpects to fully utilize the tederal and state net cperating loss camyforwards in future years
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The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% o
pretax Income, as a result of the following:

For the Years Ended September 30,

15 2014 23
Dollars Parcont Dollars Porcent Dallars Percant
(in milllions, excopd porcontsgpes)
LS. federal Income tax af statutory rate £ 3,148 % 5 274 3% § 2540 35 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 194 2% 125 2% 42 1%
Mon-U.S. tax effact, net of federal banafit {327) {4)% {278) {4)% (328) {5)%
Prior years U5, domestc production activibes deduction - - {191} (2)% — — %
m;r;ah: :mrs?m?r:: tax reserves related to the resobution of (239) 2% = —% = —%
Other, net {104) {1)% (T8} {1)% 23 —
Income tax provision 5 DBET W 5 2288 0% 5 2277 3 %

The effective income tax rates were 30% in fiscal 2015 and 2014 . The following highlights the significant tax fems recorded in each respective
year:

= 8 52596 milion tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2015 resulting from the resolution of uncertain tax positions with taxing authorities. Included
in the 5296 million is a one-time 5239 million tax banefit that relates to prior fiscal years; and

= a8 %264 million tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2014 related to a deduction for U5, domestic production activities, of which 5191 million
wag a one-teme tax benelit related to prior fiscal years,

The affective incomea tax rate of 30% in fiscal 2014 diffars from the effective income tax rate of 31% in fiscal 2013 mainly due o

= the aferementioned 264 million tax benefit recognized in fiscal 2014; and
= the absence of the following in fiscal 2014:
= atax benefit recognized in fiscal 2013 as a result of new guidance issued by the state of California regarding apportionment rules
for years prior to fiscal 2012; and
= certain foreign tax credit benefits related to prior years recognized in fiscal 2013,

Current income taxes receivable were 577 milllon and 591 milllon at September 30, 2015 and 2014 | respactively. Non-cument income taxes
receivable of 3627 million and $597 millien were included in other agsets at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. See Note 5—FPrepaid
Expenses and Other Assets . At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | Income taxes payable of 575 milion and 373 million | respectively, were inciuded in
accrued income taxes as part of accrued liabilities, and accreed income taxes of 5752 million and 3855 milllon , respectively, were included in other
leng-term liabilities. See Nole 8—Accruved and Other Labilites .

Cumuiative undistnibuted earnings of the Company's international subsidiares thal are intended to be reinvested indefinilely outside the Linited
States amounted 1o 56.4 billon at September 30, 2015 . The amount of income taxes that would have resulted had such earnings been repatriated
Is not practicably determinabée

The Company's largest operating hub outside the United States is located in Singapore. |t operates under 3 tax incentive agreement which &
effective through September 30, 2023, and is conditional upon meeting certain business operations and employment thresholds in Singapore. The
tax incentive agreement dacreased Singapare tax by 5192 milon , 5168 millien and 5158 million , and the benafit of the tax incentive agreament an
diluted earnings per share was $0.08 , 30,07 and $0.06 in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 | respectively,

In accerdance with Accounting Standards Codification T40—Income Taxes , the Company is required to inventory, evaluate and measure all
uncertain tax positons taken or to be taken on tax returns, and to record
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habilities for the amount of such positions that may not be sustained, or may enly partially be sustained, upon examination by the relevant taxing
authorties

At September 30, 2015 and 2014 | the Company's total gross unrecognized tax benefits ware 51,1 Billon and 51.3 billion | respectively,
exclegive of Interest and penalties desoribed below, Included in the 51.1 billlen and $1.3 bilien are 3859 million and 51,1 Billion of unrecognized tax
penefits, respectively, that if recognized, would reduce the efective tax rate in a future period,

A reconciliation of beginning and ending unfecognized tax benefits by fiscal year is as follows

s 2044
(in mrilliceres)
Beginning balance at October 1 $§ 1,303 5 1,023
Increases of unrecognized tax benefits related to prior years 44 128
Decreases of unrecognized tax banelits related to pror years (413) [54)
Increases of unfecognized tax benefits related to current year 120 188
Reductions related 1o RApsing statute of Emitations ()] {4)
Ending balance at September 30 § 1081 5 1303

Itis the Compam’s policy 1o account for mterest expense and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in non-operating expense in its
consolidited statements of operations. The Company reversed S8 milllan of imterest expenss in fiscal 2015 and recagnized $10 million and 59
milian of interest expense in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively, related to uncerain tax positions. The Company accrued $1 millon and 52 million of
penalies in fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively, and reversed 34 million of penalties in fiscal 2013, related fo uncertain tax posttions. At
September 30, 2015 and 2014 , the Company had accrued interest of 533 million and 539 million , respectively, and accrued penalties of $6 millicn
and 55 million , respactively, related to uncertain tax positions in its other long-term liakilities,

The Company's fiscal 2003, 2010 and 2011 U.S. federal income tax retwns are currently under Internal Revenue Senvice ("IRE) examination.
The Company fas filed a federal refund claim for fescal year 2008, which i5 alse cumently under IRS examination, Except for the refund claim, the
feceral statutes of Bmitations have expined for fiscal years prior to 2008, The Company's fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2008 California tax returns are
currently under examination. Except for certain eutstanding refund claims, the California statutes of imitations have expired for fiscal years prior to
2006.

During fiscal 2013, the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA™) completed its examination of the Compa ny's fiscal 2003 through 2009 Canadian tax
returns and proposed certain assessments, Basaed on the findings of its examination, the CRA akso proposed cerain assessments to the Company's
fizcal 2010 through 2014 Canadian tax returns. The Company filed notices of ebjection against these assessmants and, in fiscal 2015, complated
the appeals process without reaching a settlement with the CRA. The Company intends to petition the Tax Court of Canada to overtum the CRA's
assessments, and continues to believe that its income tax provision adequately reflects its obligations to the CRA,

The Company s alse subject to examinations by various state and forelgn tax authorities. All material state and forelgn tax matters have been
concluded for years thraugh fiscal 2002, The timing and outcome of the final resolutions of the federal, state and foreign tax examinations and
refund claims are uncertain. As such, it i not reasonably possible 1o estimate the impact that the fral outcomes could have on the Company's
unrecognized tax benefits in the next 12 months.
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Hote 20—Legal Matters

The Company is party to various legal and regulatery proceedings. Some of these proceedings irvobse complex claims that are subject to
substartial uncertainties and unascerainable damages. Accordingly, except as disclosed, the Company has not established resenes or ranges of
possible loss related to these proceedings, as at this time in the proceedings, the matters do not relate to a probable loss andior the amount or
range of losses are not reasonably estimable. Althgugh the Company believes that it has strong defenses for the Btigation and regulatory
proceedings described below, it could, in the future, incur judgments or fines or enter into settements of claims that could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial pesition, results of operations or cash flows. From time to tme, the Company may engage in setlement
discussions or mediations with respect to one or more of its outstanding itigation matters, either on its own behalf or collectively with other parties

The litigation accrual is an estimate and ks based on management's understanding of s litigation profile, the specifics of each case, advice of
coungel to the extent appropriate and management’s best estimate of incurred 1055 as of the balance sheet date

Thie fellowing table summarnizes the activity related te acerued Bigation

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2014
i millions|

Balance at October 1 § 1456 35 5

Reestablishment of obligation related to interchange multidistrict litigation - 1,056

Additional provigion for legal maters 14 453

Payments on legal matters (448) 58)

Balance at September 30 § 1,024 & 1,458

U5, Covered Liligation

Wisa Inc., Visa US A and Visa International are parties o cenain legal proceedings that are covered by the U S retrospective responsibility
pfan, which the Company refers to as the LS. covered litigation. See Nofe 3—U. 5. Refrospechive Responsiilily Flan and Potential Visa Evrope
Liabites . An accrual for the LS. coverned litigation and a charge to the [igation provision are recorded when loss is deemed to be probable and
reasonably estimable. In making this determination, the Company evaluates available information, including but not Emited to actions taken by the
iitigation committee. The total accrual related 1o the U5, covered litigation could be either higher or lower than the escrow account batance. The
foliowing table summarizes the activity related to U.S. covered litigation

Fiscal 2015 Fiscal 2044
{in millions)

Balance at October 1 5 1443 3 -
Reestablishment of obligation related to interchange multidistrict litigation — 1,056
Additional provision for interchange opt-out Rigation _ 450
Payments on covensd kitigation (428) {57}

Balance at September 30 $ 1,023 § 1449

On January 14, 2014, the MDL 1720 court entered the final judgment order approving the setlement with the class plaintiffs in the interchange
multidistrict litigation preceedings, which is subject o the adjudication of any appeals. Following the payment of approximately 54_0 bilion from the
litigation ascrow accaunt inta settleme nt funds pursuant to the class sattlement agreement, on January 27, 2014, Visa received and deposited into
tha Company's litigation escrow account “takedown payments”® of approximately 51.1 billion | which Visa was entitied to receive under the class
sattlerment agreement based on payment card sales volume attributable to merchants who opted out The deposit into the litigation escrow account
and a refated increase in accrued litigatien to address opt-out claims were recorded in the secand quarer of fiscal 2014. An additional accrual of
5450 milllon associated with
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these opkout clalms was recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, Payments totaling 357 milllon and 5426 milkon were made in fiscal 2014 and
2015, respectively, from the litlgatien escrow account reflecting settiements with a number of individual opt-out merchants, resulting In an accnued
balance of $1.0 bilkon related to U 5. covered liigation as of September 30, 2015. See further discussion below under [nferchange Opf-out Ligalion
and Note 3—U. 5. Retrospective Responsibilty Plan and Potential Visa Europe Lisbilities

Interchange Multdistct Litgation (MOL)

Beginning in May 2005, a seres of complaints (the majority of which were styled as class actions) were filed in LS. federal distnict couns by
merchants against Visa ULS.A , Visa International andior MasterCard, and in some cases, certain Visa member financial mstitutions. The complaints
challenged, amaeng othar things, Visa's and MasterCard's purponted sefting of interchangs reimbursement fees, their "no Suichange” rules, and
alleged tying and bundling of transaction fees under the federal antitrust laws, and, in some cases, certain state unfair competition laws, The Judicial
Fanel on Multidistnct Litigation issued an order transferring the cases to the U 5. District Court for the Eastern District of Mew York for coordination
of pre-trial proceadings in MDL 1720, A group of purported class plaintitfs subsequently filed a Second Consolidated Amended Class Action
Complaint which, together with the compilaints brought by individual merchants, sought money damages alleged to range in the tens of billions of
dollars (subject to trebling), as well as attorneys® tees and injunctive relief. The class plaintiffs also filed a Second Supplemental Class Action
Complaint against Visa Ing, and certain member financial institutions challenging Visa's reorganization and IFO under the antitrust laws and seeking
unspecified money damages and dectaratory and injunctive relief, including an order that the IPQ be umwound

The Company and the individual merchants whose claims were consolidated with the MDL (the "Individual Piaintiffs™) signed a settliement
agreement to resolve the Individual Plaintifts’ claims against the Company for approximately 5350 milllen | This payment was made from the
lithgation escrow actount on October 29, 2012, and the cowrt has dismissed those calms with prejudice

In addition, Visa Inc., Visa U.S.A, Visa International, MasterCard Incorporated, MasterCard International Incorparated, various U S, financial
institution defendants, and the class plaintiffs signed a sefilement agreement (the "Settlement Agreament”) 1o resohe the class plaintiffs’ claims. The
terms of the Settliement Agreement include, among other erms:

» A comprehensive release from paricipating class members for liabdity ansing out of claims asserted in the litigation, and 3 further
release to protect against fulure litigation regarding default interchange and the other U.S. rules at issue in the MDL,

« Seftlement payments from the Company of approximately 54.0 billion ;

= Distribution to ckass merchants of an amount equal to 10 basis points of default interchange across all credit rate categores for a
period of eight consecutive months, which otherwise woukd have been paid 1o issuers and which effectively reduces credit interchange
for that period of ime;

* Certain modifications to the Company's fules, including modilications to permit surcharging on credit transactions under certain
circumstances, subject to a cap and a level playing field with other general purpese card competitors; and

« Agreement that the Company will meet with merchant buying groups that seek o negotiate interchange rates collectively.

On Decamber 10, 2012, Visa paid approximately $4.0 billien from the litigation escrow account into a settlemeant fund established pursuant to
the Settlernent Agreement.

On January 14, 2014, the court entered a final judgment order approving the setblement, from which a number of objectors have appealed.
Undtil the appeals are finally adjudicated, no assurance can be provided that the Company will be able 1o resalve the class plaintils' clms as
contemplated by the Settlement Agreement. The U.5. Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit heard argument in the objectors’ a ppeals on
Saptember 28, 2015
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On January 14, 2015, fellowing a court-approved process to give class members who previously opted cut of the damages portion of the class
setlement an option 1o rejoin i, the class administrator reported that @ had received 1,179 requests by merchants to rejoin the cash settiement
class, some of which may include multiple marchants

On July 28, 2015, certain objectors 10 the class settiernent asked the court to vacale or sel aside &5 final judgment approving the seltlement, or
in th alternative, o grant further discovery, in light of communications beteeen one of MastenCard's former lawyers and one of the ixwers Tor the
class plaintffs.

Consumer inferchange Litigation

On December 16, 2013, a putative class action was filed on behalf of all Visa and MasterCard payment cardhalders in the United States since
January 1, 2000 against cartain financial institutions, identifying non-defendants Visa, MasterCard, and certain ather financial institutions as co-
conspirators, Plaintiffs allege primarily a conspiracy to fix interchange fees and seek injunctive relief, attorneys' fees, and trable damages in excess
of 554.0 billion dollars annually arising from purparted overcharges, Criginally filed in federal court in California, the case was transferred to MDL
1720, On Nowember 26, 2014, the MDL court dismissed plaintfis’ federal law claim and declined to exercise jurisdiction over plaintiffs’ state law
claim. Both skdes have asked the court to reconsider aspects of its decision and have fliked notices of a ppeal.

Interchange Qpt-oul Litigatian

Beginning in May 2013, more than 50 opt-out cases have been filed by hundreds of merchants in various federal district courts, generally
pursUing damages claims on allegations similar o those raised in MDL 1720, A number of the cases also inglude allegations that Visa has
monopolized, attempled o monopalize, andior conspired to monopolize debit card-related market segments. and one of the cases seeks an
njunction against the fied acguirer network fee. The cases name as defendants Visa Inc., Visa US4, Visa International, MasterCard
Incorporated, and MasterCard Intermational Incorporated, although some also include cerain LS. financial institutions as defendants. Wal-Man
Stares Inc. and its subsidianes filed an opt-out camplaint that alse adds Visa Europe Limited and Visa Europe Sarvices Inc. as defendants. Visa has
acknowledged and confirmed its obligations to indemnify Visa Europe Limited and \isa Europe Services Inc. with respect to the claim against them
in Wal-Mart's complaint.

Viza, MasterCard, and certain U.5. financial institution defendants in MOL 1720 filed a complaint in the Eastern District of New York against
certain named class representative plaintiffs who had opted out or stated their intention to opt out of the damages portion of the Settement
Agreement In addition, Wisa filed three more similar complaints in the Eastern District of New York against Wal-Mart Stores Inc.; against The Home
Depat, Inc, and Home Depot US4, and against Sears Hoklings Corporation. Al feur compiaints seek a declaration that, from January 1, 2004 to
Movember 27, 2012, the time periad for which opt-outs may seek damages under the Settlement Agreement, Visa's conduct in, ameng ather things,
continung 1o set default interchange rates, malntaining its “honor all cards” rule, enforcing certain rules relating to merchants, and restructuring
tsel, did not viokate federal or state anbirust laws

All the cases filed in federal court have been either assigned 1o the judge presiding aver MOL 1720, or have been or expect to be transferred
by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Ligation for inclusion in MDL 1720. The court has enterad an order confirming that in re Fayment Cand
Interchange Fee and Marchant Diseount Anttrust Ltigabion |, 1:05-md-M720-4G-JO (E.D.N.Y.), Includes (1) all current and fulure actions transfermed
to MDL 1720 by the Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation or other order of any court for inclusion in coordinated or prefrial proceedings, and (2) all
actions filed in the Eastern District of Mew York that arise out of operative facts az alleged in the cases subject to the transfer orders of the Judicial
Fanel on Multidistrict Litigation, Cases that are fransferred to or otherwise included in MDL 1720 are U 5. covered litigation for purposes of the U.S.
retrospective responsibility plan. See Nafe 3—U. 5. Refospective Respansibilly Flan and Polential Visa Eurape Liabilibes

Visa hag reached a settlement agreement with Wal-Mart Stores Inc. and it subsidianes, which will terminate If, following all appeals, the MOL
clags settiement is reversed or vacated with respect to certification of the Rule 23(B)2) settement class or the consideration pravided to or release
provided by that class. Inchuding this settiement
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with WakMart, as of the date of filing, Visa has reached settlement agreements with a number of merchants representing approximately 48% of the
Viga-tranded payment card sales volume of merchants who opted out

On December 23, 2014, a similar case was Med in New Mesics state court by New Mexice's attornsy general on behall of the state, state
agencies, and citizens of the state, generally pursuing chims on allegations similar to those raised in MOL 1720, On May 15, 2015, defendants filed
a partial motion 1o dismiss, which was granted in part and, amang ather things, narrowed the state antittust damages ckims,

While the Company believes that it has substantial defanses in these matters, the final outcome of individual legal claims is inherently
unpredictable. The Company could incur judgments, enter into setiements or revise its expectations regarding the outcome of individual opt-out
claims, and such devealopments could have a material adverse effect an our financial results in the pariod in which the effect becomes probable and
reasonably estimakie,

European Competition Froceedings

Euwropean Commission, Following the European Commission's ("EC") issuance in 2008 of a Statement of Objections, the EC announced a
supplementary Statement of Objections (“SS0%) on July 31, 2012, concerning interchange for consumer credit card transactions; and, on March 8,
2013, a redacted version of the 550 was served on Visa Inc. and Visa international. The S50 alleges a breach of Article 101 of the Treaty on the
Functipning of the Eurspean Union and Article 53 of the EEA Agreement Among other things, the S50 asserts claims jointly against Visa Europe,
Visa Inc., and Visa International objecting to domestic, cress-border, and inter-reglonal interchange, and Visa Europe's cross-border acquinng and
point of sale rubes. The S5O alse announces the EC's intention 1 impose fines. The potential amount of any fine cannot be estimated at this time.

On February 26, 2014, the EC adopted a farmal decision accepting Visa Europe’s commaments addressing domestic interchange, cross-
border interchange for credit card transactions within Europe, and cross-border acguiring within Eurape, and made the commitrents legally binding
on Visa Europe. The EC continues the proceadings in respect of inter-regional interchange fees that apply 1o transactions involving a Visa credit
cardholder fram cutside the Visa Eurape territory and a merchantin the European Economic Area (EEA). Thesa interchange fees are set by Visa
inc.

UK. Merchant Liigation . Since July 2013, approximately 20 merchants (together with subsidiary/affiliate companies) have commenced
proceedings against Visa Europe (used in this U K. Merchant Litigation section to denote Visa Europe Limited andior relevant subsidiary/affiliate
companies), Visa Inc. and Visa Inernational relating to Interchange rates in Europe, and seek damages tor alleged antk-competitive conduct
primarily in relation to U K. domestic andlor Irish domestic andfor intra-EEA interchange fees for credt and debit cards, After a successful
appication for summary juggment in the High Court (Commercial Cowrt) and an unsuccessiul appeal by the claimants, the claims of U.K. merchants
should be limited to the six year period immediately preceding the issuance of each claim,

In addition, since March 2013, in excess of 20 additional merchants (tegether with subskliaryfatfiliate companies) have threatened i
commence proceedings against Visa Europe, Visa Inc., and Visa International with respect to interchange rates in Europe. Visa Europe, Visa Inc.,
and Visa Infernational entered into standstill agreements with respect o some of those merchants’ claims. While the amount af interchange being
chalienged could be substantial, these claims have not yet been filed and their Tull Scope 5 not yet known.

Altogether, therefore, merchams accounting for mare than 50% of UK. retail sakes have sithes filed claims or presenved their right to doe so. The
amount of interchange being challenged is substantial. Although not all of the merchant claims have been served and thus the full scope of the
claims is not yet known, and thene are substantial defenses to these claims, the total damages sought in the claims that have been served amount
to several biffion dollars.

The Company has learned that several additsonal European merchants have indicated that they may bring claims against Visa Europe, Visa

Inc. andfor Visa International with respect to interchange rates in Europe. We anticipate that similar claims may be assered by additional merchants
in the future,
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Inour view, pursuant to the parbes' agreements, Visa Ewope s obligated to indemnify Visa Inc. and Visa International in connection with the
European Competition Proceeding and the U K. Merchant Litigation, including payment of any fines or damages that may be impoged, Howeaver,
Visa Ewrope has informed Visa Inc. of its view that it is not abligated to indemnify Visa Inc. of Viga International for these clims. The parties have
initiated the executive engagement aspect of the dispute resolution procedure contemplated by the Framework Agreement to resolve this dispute. If
the acquisition of Visa Europe is not completed, this dispute may continue. However, if the acquisition is completed, Visa Europe will become wholly
owned by Visa Inc. In these circumstances, Visa Inc's protaction in respect of losses suffered pursuant to the claims which are covered by the
transaction protections described in Nofe 2—Visa Ewrope and Naole 3—U 5. Retrospective Responsibilty Plan and Potenbial Visa Evrope Liabitties
will be pursuant to the terms of the preferred stock andfor the UK. loss sharing agreament. If claims are not covered by these transactonal
protections, Visa Europe may have recourse under its membership doecuments against members under the terms of the existing indemnity
arrangements (other than in respect of certain claims refating to LK. domestic mulitateral interchange fees)

Other Litigation
Undirect Purchassr” Actions

From 2000 to 2004, complaints were filed on behalf of consumers in nineteen different states and the District of Columbia against Visa and
MasterCard The compiainis alleged, among other things, that Visa's “honor all cards” ruke and a similar MasterCard rule violated state antitrust and
consumer protection laws, and common law. The claims in these class actions assered that merchants, faced with excessive merchant diseount
feas, passed on some partion of those fees 1 consumers in the form of higher prices on goods and services sold, Plaintiffs sought money damages
and injunctive reliel. Visa has been successiul in the majority of these cases, and has resolved the cases in all jurisdictions but California,

In Calfornia, the consolidated CredivDiebt Card Tying Cases were resolved pursuant to a revised settlement agreement that received final
approval and was affirmed on appeal. Certain objectorns filed petitions for rebearning and for review by the Caifomia Supreme Court that were denied
on February 11, 2015, and the judgment appraving the settiement agreement is now final. One objectar kas appealed the trial courts orders
regarding the distribution of certain setement funds, and the denial of that abjectors motion for attorneys' fees and costs.

Canadian Compalition Proceedings

Mevchant Litigadion . Beginning in December 2010, a number of putative class action lawsuits were filed in Quebec, British Columbla, Ontario,
Saskatchewan, and Albera against Visa Canada, MasterCard, and ten financial institutions on behall of purponed ctasses of merchants and others
that accept payment by Viga and MasterCard. In Saskatchawan, a separate action was filed against Visa Canada Corporation and Viga Inc., two
MasterCard entities, and a number of smaller Canadian issuing banks that are not named as defendants in any of the existing proceedings. The
lawsuits allege a violation of Section 45 of Canada's Competition Act and assert claims of civil conspeacy, interference with economic interests, and
unjust enrichment, among others. Plaintiffs allege that Visa and MasterCard each conspired with their member financial institutions to set supra-
competitive default interchange rates and merchant discount fees, and that Visa and MasterCard's respective "no-surcharge® and “henor all cards®
paolicies had the anticompetitive effect of increasing merchant discount fees. Three of the named financial institutions, which are not significant
Canadian issuers, have entered into settlement agreements with the plaintiffs, subject to court approval.

On March 26, 2014, the Britah Celumbia Supreme Court, in Waison v. Bank of America Corporation, et al, | granted the plaintiffs” application
for class certificabon in part, aliowing plaintffs to proceed as a class on claims for price fixing under Canada's Competition Act, among other claims.
©On appeal by both plaintiff and defendants, the British Columbia Court of Appeal permitted the class to proceed with 83 price-fiking and other claims,
wihile striking out certain claims and ordering reconsideration of certification as it relates to one of the bank defendants. The lawsults in Quebee,
Ontario, Alberta, and Saskatchewan are effectively stayed pending further proceedings in the British Columbia wsuit

The pending Canada Merchant Litigation lawsuits Brgely seek unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief, but some allege substantial
AAMBgEs.
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VISA INC.

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Cantinued)
September 30, 2015

Dynamic Curency Conversion

On February 4, 2013, the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission ("ACCC") commenced proceedings in the Federal Court of
Australia against several Visa entlies asserting vislations of Australian competition law based on allegations af restricions an dymamie currency
corersion (DCC) services on Visa international payment card transactions at certam Australian merchant outlets from May 2010 to October 2010,
and on DCC services on cash withdrawals using Visa international payment cards at Australian ATMs.

The parties reached an agreement 1o resohe the proceedings. Pursuant 1o the settlement, on September 4, 2015, the court ordered Visa 1o
pay a pecuniary penalty of AUD S18 millien and costs of AUD 52 million based on a single confravention of section 47(2) of the Competition and
Consumer Act 2010 (Cth) for conduct concarning certain Australian menchant outlets from May to October 2010. The court dismissed al ather
claims asserted by the ACCC.

Data Pass Liligation

On Movember 19, 2010, a consumer filed an amended class action complaint against Webloyalty.com, Inc,, Gamestop Corporation, and Visa
Inc. in Conmecticut fedaral district court, seeking damages, restitution, and injunctive relief on the grounds that consumers who made online
purchases at merchants were allegadly deceived into incurring charges for services from Webloyalty.com through the unauthorized passing of
cardholder account information during the sales transaction (“data pass™), in viclation of federal and state consumer protection statutes and common
law, On October 15, 2015, the court dismissed the case in its entirety, without leave to replead. Plaintiff filed a notice of appeal on November 12,
2015

U5 ATM Access Fee Liligation

National ATM Counci Class Acton | On Octaber 12, 2011, the Natonal ATM Council and thirteen non-bank ATM operators fled & purponed
class action lawsult against Visa (Visa Inc., Visa Intermational, Visa U.S.A , and Plus System, Inc.) and MasterCard In the U.S. District Court for the
District of Columbia. The complaint chatlenges Visa's rule (and a simitar MasterCard rule) that if an ATM operator chooses to charge consumers an
access fee for a Visa or Plus transaction, that fee cannot be greater than the access fee charged for transactions on athes networks. Plaintifts claim
that the rule violates Sactian 1 of the Sharman Act, and seek damages Sin an amount not presantly known, but which is tens of milliens of dollars,
prior to trebling,” injunctive relief, and attorneys' fees, Plaintiffs filed an amended class action complaint against the same defendants, also asserting
that the ATM access fee rule viglates Section 1 of the Sherman Act. Plaintiffs request treble damages, injunctive relief and attorneys' fees.

Consumer Class Actions . In October 2011, a purported consumer class action was filed against Visa and MasterCard in the same federal
court challenging the same ATM access fee rules. Two other purported consumer class actions challenging the rules, later combined, were algo filed
in October 2011 in the same federal court naming Visa, MasterCard and three financial institutions as defendants. These putative class actions seek
treble damages, restitution, Injunctive relief, and attorneys' fees where available under federal and state law, including under Section 1 of the
Sherman Act and consumer protection statutes,

On February 13, 2013, the court granted the defendants’ motions to dismiss and dismissed all of these cases without prejudice, and later
densed plaintiffs’ motions for leave 1o amend and to alter the cownt's judgment. On plaintifts’ appeal, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbe Chreult vacated the lower court’s decisions and remanded for further proceedings. On Septerber 3, 2015, defendants filed a petition
seeking panel rehearing or rehearing en banc before the appeliate court, which was denied on September 28, 2015,

LS. Departrment of Justice Canl investigalive Demand
©n March 13, 2012, the Antitrust Division of the United States Depariment of Justice (the ~ Division * ) issued a Civil Investigative Demand, or =
CID, ° to Visa Inc. seeking documents and information reganding a potential viokation of Section 1 or 2 of the Sherman Act, 16 USC_§§1. 2 The

CID fecuses on PIN-Authenticated Visa Debit and Visa's competitive respanses fo the Dodd-Frank Act, including Visa's fieed acquirer nebwork fee.
Visa is coopefating with the Division in connection with the CID.
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VISA INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)
September 30, 2015

Federal Trade Commission Voluntary Access Lether

On September 21, 2012, the Bureau of Competition of the United States Federal Trade Commission (the " Bureau * ) requested that Visa
provide on a voluntary basis documents and information regarding potential violations of cerain regulations associated with the Dodd-Frank Act,
particularly Section S20(L) 1MB) of the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, 16 U.5.C. 16830-2, and Regulation Il, 12 C.F.R. § 235.7(b} (commonly known
as the “Durkin Amendment” and regulations). The request focuses on information related o the purpeses, implementation, and impact of th
optional PiN Debit Gateway Service. The revenue generated by the PIN Debit Gateway Service is not material to the Company's financial
staterments. Visa is codperating with the Bureau and responding to s information requests

Pulss Network

On Movember 25, 2014, Pulse Network LLC filed suit against Visa Inc. in federal district cowrt in Texas. Pulse alleges that Visa has
monopalized and attempted to monopolize debit card natwork services markets. Fulse also allages that Visa has entered info agreements in
restraint of trade, engaged in unlawful exclusive dealing and tying, viclated the Texas Free Enterprise and Antitrust Act, and engaged in tortiows
interference with prospective business relationships, Fulse seeks unspecified treble damages, atiorneys” fees, and injunctive relief, including to
@njodn the fined acuirer nebeork fee structure, Visa's conduct regarding PIN-Authenticated Yisa Debit, and Visa agreements with merchants and
acguirers refating 1 debd acceptance. On January 23, 2015, Visa fied a motion (o dismiss the compiaint

Hote 21—5Subsequent Events

O Movember 2, 2015, the Company and Visa Eutape entired ints a ransaction agreement, pursuant to which the Company and Visa Eufope
agreed on the terms and conditions of the Com pany's acquisition of 100% of the share capital of Visa Eutope. See Nole 2—Visa Europe |

In Cotober 2015 | the Company’s board of directars authorized a new S5.0 billion share repurchase program. See Note 14— Stockhoiders'
Equity .

In October 2015 | the Company's board of directors declared a dividend in the aggregate amount of 0,14 per share of class A common stock
(determined in the case of class B and class C common stock on an as-converted basis). See Note 14— Seckhokders’ Equiy .
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Selected Quarterly Financial Data {Unaudited)

The following ables show salected quarterly operating results for each quarter and full year of fiscal 2015 and 2014 for the Company:

Quarter Ended {unaudited) Fiscal Year
Sep. 30, Jun 30, Mar, 31, Dec. 31,
Misa lng, 2015 25 2015 2014 2015 Tatal
i mdliens, except por share data)
Operating revenues $§ 3511 5 3518 5 3400 § 3382 5 13880
Operating Income 5 2283 8§ 2262 % 2281 % 2238 % 4,064
Net income attributable to Visa Inc. -] 1612 § 16887 S 1550 3 15698 % 6,328
Basic earnings per share =
Class A common stock 5 052 $ 063 % 063 3 063 3 258
Class B common stock 4 102 § 114 % 104 3 106 % 426
Class C comman stock 5 248 § 278 % 253 % 254 S 10.33
Diluted sarnings per share ©
Class A common stock 3 062 % 06s % 063 3% 063 3 258
Class B common stock 5 102 5 114 % 104 3 104 3 425
Class C common stock K3 248 5§ 27T % AR S 253 '3 1030
Quaner Ended (Lnsuded) Fiscal Year
Visalne, i o e O 2044 Total
fin millions, except per share data)
Operating revenues 5 3,229 & 3,155 % 3163 % 3,185 & 12702
Qperating Income 5 1552 % 2020 % 2048 3 2077 % 7897
Net income attributable to Visa Inc. $ 1073 % 1,360 % 1598 & 1407 5,438
Basic earnings per share &
Class A common stock 5 043 % 054 % 063 % 055 % 216
Class B common stock 5 073 5 0891 %5 106 3 0893 3% 363
Class C commoan stock -] 173 § 21T 3 253 % 22 % 865
Diluted earnings per share =
Class A common stock 5 043 % 054 % 063 % 055 % 216
Clags B common stock ¥ 072 5 091 % 106 % 09z 3 asz
Class C comman stock 5 172 § 217 % 252 % 220 % 862

1" Dwaring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, we recorded a Kigation provision of $450 million and related tax benefits associated with the interchange
multidistrict [figation, which is covered by the U5, refrospective responsibility plan, Monetary liabilities from settiements of, or judgments in, the
L2, covered litigation will be pakd from the litigation escrow account. See Note 3=U. 5. Retrospecive Responsibity Plan and Polental Visa
Europe Liabites and Nofe 20—Lagal Matters to our consslidated financial statements.

I The per share amounts for the prior periods presented have been retroactively adjusted to refiect the four -for-ong stock Spit effected in the fiscal
second quarter of 2015, See Note 14—=Stockholders' Equity .
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Visalnc.:

We consent to the inclusion in this Securities Report on Form 8 of Visa Inc. filed with the Kanto Local
Finance Bureau of our report dated November 19, 2015, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of
Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended September 30, 2015, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Visa

Inc. as of September 30, 2015, and to the reference to our firm under the caption “Section VI. - Financia
Conditions’ in this Securities Report.

/s KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, Cdlifornia
March 28, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Visalnc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2015.
We aso have audited Visa Inc.’s internal control over financia reporting as of September 30, 2015, based on
criteriaestablished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Visa Inc.’s management is responsible for these
consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s interna control over
financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated
financia statements included examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia
respects, the financial position of Visa Inc. and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30,
2015, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, Visa Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financia reporting as of September 30,
2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

242/243



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO00o0bDOo00DOoOdnoo(ELse92)
oOoOooodn

/IS KPMG LLP

Santa Clara, California
November 19, 2015
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